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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

| am pleased to present the annual results of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group had experienced a challenging 12 months in
FY2016. China’s economy expanded 6.7% in 2016, the
slowest in 26 years. Strong fiscal support, loose monetary
policy, and a booming property market in the first three
quarters of last year were the main factors that drove
China’s economic growth in 2016. Chinese banks extended
a record US$1.8 trillion of loans in the past year, as the
government used more credit-fueled stimulus to meet its
growth target, even at the risk of exacerbating debt levels in
the economy. Concurrently, global economy became more
uncertain especially after the election of the president of
United States, which also led the business environment in
China to become a more cautious and challenging one.

In addition, in 2016 China’s policymakers have tightened
the rules and regulations on capital flows leaving the
country; they have imposed new stringent restrictions on
any outbound fund flows including corporate acquisitions
and investments. These restrictions are partly an attempt
to keep the renminbi from depreciating in the future after it
depreciated approximately 6.6 per cent against the dollar in
2016.

Facing the challenging outlook for the ongoing Chinese and
global economic growth, the Group will continue to exert
rigorous control over its business operations and strategies.
The Board’s responsibility remains to produce and deliver
sustainable value to shareholders, as it guides the Group
through these challenging market conditions.

During the past year, there was a HK$7,070,000 increase
in the revenue of the Group for from HK$23,551,000 of
2015 to HK$30,621,000 of 2016 and the loss for the year
decreased from approximate HK$32,548,000 of 2015 to
approximate HK$2,587,000 of 2016. The decrease in loss
is attributable to the steady development of the Group’s
business of corporate consulting and management services
in the financial services sector.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year under review the Company has been focused
on actively developing and expanding businesses in the
corporate consulting and management services in the
financial services sector for both onshore and offshore.

With the PRC government closely monitoring and regulating
the outflow of capital, it has hindered the Group’s
service of the onshore financial advisory for a number of
overseas investment. The Board views that for the short
term we would be operating in the similar challenging
regulatory environment, however we are of the view that
RMB liberalization will be on the horizon for the long term
outlook, during which the Group will have been greatly
positioned to fully take advantage during such time.

During the financial year under review the Group had
positioned itself to partner up with a strategic partner and
in the first quarter of 2017 made a minority investment
into a Singapore registered real estate income trust
management company. The invested company is a real
estate fund manager, whose business includes wholesale
property funds, real estate advisory services and bespoke
real estate funds targeted primarily in selected commercial
and residential sectors in the Europe and Asia. It is
currently setting up an investment entity, which the Group
will be co-managing via the invested company, to take
advantage of specific opportunities in the residential,
student accommodation and health care sectors. The
investment entity shall have a life of 4 years that is in line
with underlying leases and is expected to generate current
income of 10% per annum as well as significant capital
appreciation. The ultimate aim of the portfolio is to grow
to £30 million with the aim of providing an exit of the entire
portfolio at institutional yields between 6-7%.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

The Board is pleased to report for 2016 the Company’s
offshore corporate consulting and management services
had been emergent and continues to develop steadily as
forecasted. The Group was able to secure a number of
corporate clients which it provided corporate development
advisory services and restructuring services. One of the
restructuring services included a restructuring of a limited
partnership that was affected by one of its limited partners
which held a substantial holding in the limited partnership.
The limited partner at the time was a south China real
estate conglomerate which was threatened with a hostile
takeover. The Group was able to cautiously navigate
through the intricacies and successfully restructure the
limited partnership where all the parties involved were
satisfied.

In general the Group also concentrated on capital
management for our clients; which encompasses
structuring and optimizing of assets. The Group provides
both short term and long term approach in aligning client
needs with collective expertise and dedicated resources.
Management has been focused in delivering our clients
with international trust and corporate structuring solutions
that reach across the full spectrum of entrepreneurial and
corporate wealth.

In addition, apart from the aforementioned operations,
the Group continues to research, develop and explore
investment opportunities which are strategic to its business
operations and which will contribute significantly to the
return of the Company’s shareholders.

Together with the experiences of the Board, the Group
has the leadership and track record to achieve and create
operational added value as well as sustainable value for the
financial management services.

On behalf of the Board, we would also like to take this
opportunity to thank the Group’s clients, suppliers,
vendors, banks business partners, consultants and
shareholders for their support and trust generously given
to the Group. The Board also expresses gratitude to the
management and staff for their work and dedication during
the past years.

Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and loss attributable to shareholders

The total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 was approximately HK$30,621,000 (2015:
HK$23,551,000) which increased by approximately 30% as
compared to that of the previous financial year.

The increase in total revenue is attributed to the increase
of the management services provided. The audited
consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December 2016
was approximately HK$2,587,000 which recovered from
the loss of corresponding period last year, HK$32,548,000.
The decrease was mainly attributed to the fact that
the Intangible Asset of approximately HK$50,877,000
was totally written off in 2015 and no further need for
impairment or write-off in 2016, as reported in note 14 of
the consolidated financial statements. However, in 2016
the Group have to take up impairment of Goodwill of
approximately HK$13,468,000 (under note 15) and the fair
value change in the Contingent Consideration Payable of
approximate HK$7,336,000 (under note 5b).

Financial cost

The financial cost of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 was approximately HK$1,039,000 (2015:
HK$1,105,000) which was decreased by approximately 6%
as compared to that of the same period of last year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s
borrowing consists of amounts due to associates of
HK$913,000, contingent consideration payable of
HK$108,289,000, an amount due to the Company’s
substantial shareholder of HK$23,350,000, an amount
due to a director of HK$4,173,000, and obligations
under finance lease of HK$1,125,000. The Group had
a cash balance of approximately HK$5,597,000 (2015:
HK$12,383,000).

The Group continues to adopt a prudent treasury policy
to maintain its cash balance either in Hong Kong Dollars,
or in the local currencies of the operating subsidiaries,
maintaining a minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN MO

The issued share capital of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 was HK$176,182,556, which was the
same with end of December 2015.

Gearing ratio

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the gearing ratio of
the Group, expressed as a percentage of net debt divided
by the total capital plus net debt, was 68.31% (2015:
82.65%).

Employee and remuneration policies

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
employed a total of 9 employees (as at 31 December 2015:
9), of which 3 were located in Hong Kong and the remaining
5 were located in the PRC and 1 in USA. The Group’s
remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market
practices and formulated on the basis of performance
and experience of the employees. The salary and related
benefits of the employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis and the general remuneration structure of the
Group is subject to review annually.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies

Deregistration and winding-up of various subsidiaries
in the Group

The Board has resolved that, in order to reduce the
operating costs of the Group, those subsidiaries within
the Group which no longer add value to, nor generate any
income attributable to the Group, should be deregistered,
or voluntarily wound up.

Those subsidiaries which are currently in the deregistration
process are: Sinobase Asia Limited.

Those subsidiaries which are currently being voluntarily
wound up are: Asian Information Investment Consulting
Limited, BuyCollection.com Limited, and Myhome Network
Limited.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the period under review, the Company has been
focused on actively developing and expanding businesses
in the management services in the financial services sector
for both onshore and offshore. Via the revenue generated
by the services provided and other assets from the Group
it has sufficient cashflow generated to operate its business
as a going concern. The Company does not have any
financial difficulties to an extent that may seriously impair
the Company’s ability to continue its business.

The Board, looking forward, views that by concentrating
on providing our services and expanding on its financial
services will enhance the Company’s incremental business
and the future value of the Company.

MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The Board is pleased to report for 2016 the Company’s
offshore corporate consulting and management services
had been emergent and continues to develop steadily as
forecasted. The Group was able to secure a number of
corporate clients which it provided corporate development
advisory services and restructuring services. One of the
restructuring services included a restructuring of a limited
partnership that was affected by one of its limited partners
which held a substantial holding in the limited partnership.
The limited partner at the time was a south China real
estate conglomerate which was threatened with a hostile
takeover. The Group was able to cautiously navigate
through the intricacies and successfully restructure the
limited partnership where all the parties involved were
satisfied.

In general the Group also concentrated on capital
management for our clients; which encompasses
structuring and optimizing of assets. The Group provides
both short term and long term approach in aligning client
needs with collective expertise and dedicated resources.
Management has been focused in delivering our clients
with international trust and corporate structuring solutions
that reach across the full spectrum of entrepreneurial and
corporate wealth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN MO

During the financial year under review the Group had
positioned itself to partner up with a strategic partner and
in the first quarter of 2017 made a minority investment
into a Singapore registered real estate income trust
management company. The invested company is a real
estate fund manager, whose business includes wholesale
property funds, real estate advisory services and bespoke
real estate funds targeted primarily in selected commercial
and residential sectors in the Europe and Asia. It is
currently setting up an investment entity, which the Group
will be co-managing via the invested company, to take
advantage of specific opportunities in the residential,
student accommodation and health care sectors. The
investment entity shall have a life of 4 years that is in line
with underlying leases and is expected to generate current
income of 10% per annum as well as significant capital
appreciation. The ultimate aim of the portfolio is to grow
to £30 million with the aim of providing an exit of the entire
portfolio at institutional yields between 6-7%.

Together with the experiences of the Board, the Group
has the leadership and track record to achieve and create
operational added value as well as sustainable value for the
financial management services.

Furthermore, apart from the aforementioned operations,
the Group continues to research, develop and explore
investment opportunities which are strategic to its business
operations and which will contribute significantly to the
return of the Company’s shareholders.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xie Xuan

Chairman

Mr. Xie, aged 47, joined the Group in 2002. Mr. Xie holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Group. He has
over 19 years of successful investment and management
experience in the areas of property and logistics in
the People’s Republic of China. He graduated from
Jinan University, the PRC with a degree in International
Economics.

Mr. Xiao Jing

(resigned on 13/05/2016)

Mr. Xiao Jing, aged 36, graduated from the University
of Southern California. He was recruited at International
Business Machines Corporation (IBM) in 2001 as Trading
Manager. From 2002 to 2005, he established AB
International Co. Ltd., Billion Image Co. Ltd. and Tri-G Co.
Ltd respectively in the United States. In 2006, he founded
the Taylor Investment & Management Consultants Co.
Ltd. in China, which mainly engaged in commercial real
estate investment and development in Mainland China. In
addition, Mr. Xiao established AB International Investment
Co. and served as chairman in U.S.A. From 2009 to
present, he serves as Executive Director of Guangzhou
Pearl River Yunsheng Textile Market Administration Co.,
Ltd. and Guangzhou Pearl River Commercial Real Estate
Management Co. Ltd.

Mr. Qiu Yue

Mr. Qiu, aged 47, joined the Company in October 2008.
Mr. Qiu graduated from Zhongshan University, the People’s
Republic of China in 1991, with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
Mr. Qiu has worked in the advertising business for more
than 12 years and was the general manager of Guangzhou
Wavecom Communication and Advertising Limited from
1992 to 2006.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EENSREEAEHN

Dr. Feng Ke

Dr. Feng, aged 45, joined the Group in October 2008. Dr.
Feng holds a PHD in theoretic economics from the Beijing
University, the People’s Republic of China. Presently he
is the department head and researcher of Real Estates
Finance Research Center, of the Beijing University
Economics Faculty. Dr. Feng is an independent compliance
advisor in the publicly listed company Sky Land Resources
Limited, and is an independent director in the publicly listed
company Guang Yu Development Limited, both companies
being listed in the People’s Republic of China. He now
serves as an Independent Non-executive Director of China
Huirong Financial Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 01290).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Wu, aged 71, holds a Master degree in Economics. He
is currently a professor, guest lecturer and visiting scholar
at a number of colleges and universities in the PRC and
abroad. He has published more than 262 papers and 18
books in the areas of economics, finance and management.

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

Mr. Zheng, aged 58, was graduated from the Department
of Economic of Renmin University of China with a Master
Degree in 1987. Currently Mr. Zheng is a researcher of
the Institute of Economics of the Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences and a doctoral student supervisor of
the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences. Mr. Zheng’s field of research mainly covers the
areas in respect of microeconomics, comparative study
of corporate system, theory of corporate governance,
and revolution of state enterprises. Meanwhile, Mr. Zheng
is currently the Executive Vice-Editor-in-Chief and the
director of editorial office of Economic Research Journal
(“CAEEIFFE)"), which is a leading PRC journal in economic
theory research published by the Institute of Economics of
Chinese Academy of Social Science.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Dr. Wang

Dr. Wang Yi (£ &), male, was born in 1970 in Xinyang City,
Henan Province. He serves as an associate professor,
associate editor and tutor of Master’s degree students
for Beijing Technology and Business University, and the
director of Journal of Beijing Technology and Business
University (Social Sciences). Dr Wang graduated from
Department of Economics and Business Administration,
Beijing Normal University with a doctoral degree in
Management in 2009; obtained a master’s degree
in Economics from the School of Economics and
Management of Beijing Institute of Technology in 2004
and a Bachelor’s degree in business management from
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law in 1995.
His main research areas include business management,
Labour Economics, Economics of Education. Dr Wang
currently serves as a member of council of China Labour
Economics Association (B4 &4 K2 2E), China of
Education Association (PB4 B /EEE22) and China’s
Disabled Persons’ Federation, respectively. He also holds
five national-and provincial/ministry-level projects and has
published about 20 papers in CSSCI academic journals.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond

Mr. Lo was born in September 1953 in Hong Kong. Mr.
Lo is a Chartered Accountant in England & Wales and
a Canadian Chartered Professional Accountant (FCA),
member of International Bar Association (IBA), member
of Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (MCIArb.). Mr. Lo had
worked with Peat Marwick and also PriceWaterhouse of
Canada as Principal.

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT

Mr. Kong Yeuk Hon, John

Mr. Kong, born in 1959 Hong Kong, joined the Group
in October 2005. Mr. Kong holds a Master of Science
Degree in Applied Accounting and Finance from the
Baptist University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Kong has over 12 years experience in commercial
accounting field.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue and loss before taxation for
the year ended 31 December 2016 by principal activities is
as follows:

ARAEE([EF)BEUEREST SRS
ARKRRABRAEBHE-_T - F+ A
=t BLEFEZEEZMH®RE -

REBEEBRBEISFZEESHT

KRBz T EXBRILEER - BANER
AFTEEB2FBIARKEVBHREM T
B AKEEBEE_FT—R"F+-H=1T—H
IFEERFEEHE H 2 Wm RERBAEE
DT

Loss
before
Revenue taxation
W3 BxBiriRsia
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
By Principal activities: BREBEBKED -
Management and B R ERREBA
consultancy service income 30,621 (1,721)
30,621 (1,721)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and loss before taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2016 by geographical
areas is as follows:

AEBEBE_T-R"FT_A=+—HLF
BizipRE| D 2 Wam RRRATE RO T -

Loss
before
Revenue taxation
W3 BrBiaiRsa
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

By geographical areas R m &l 5
PRC F 27,065 6,407
HK B 3,556 (8,128)
30,621 (1,721)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited



RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The loss for the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 and the financial position of the Group at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
46 to 135 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 136.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of
the Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Based on information which is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as
at the latest practicable date prior to the issuance of this
annual report, the Directors can confirm that at least 25%
of the Company’s total listed issued share capital has at all
times been held by the public, as required by Rule 11.23 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year is set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2015: Nil) in
accordance with the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s articles of association.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman)

Mr. Xiao Jing (resigned on 13/05/2016)
Mr. Qiu Yue

Dr. Feng Ke

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

Dr. Wang Yi

In accordance with Article 87(1) and 86(3) of the articles
of association of the Company Mr. Qiu Yue, Dr. Feng Ke
and Dr. Wang Yi shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors to be proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has an unexpired service contract that is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensations.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, none of the directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or subsisted during
the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Particulars of retirement benefit schemes are set out in note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(A) Interests and short positions of the Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations
As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares,
or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571, (“SFQO”)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) contained in the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

ZE-RFER

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

BEREZESHER

BRBEES  HEERNAD A LEETH
BARREEY  MEAEEEBEEA
HEZANT  ERAMEEEEAMN -

EEEY
ER - BETT A IS BAEES
AT M E AN LTS 2 T RITHAL o

BHKBEFEE
BB S 2 HBENG S M RERME
90

ik e
(A) EFRATRAEEMEEZRS - 86
B ZEH 2B RKR

RZE—R"F+ZA=+—H ' &ARQF
EERTHREZRARKEBEEZE
(ERRBARBERA(TESRBE
1&B11) - FEE7T1EFEXVEL) 2 &t - 18
I REHFPHEB@QBREEFKBAE
&M ZEEXVERSE 7 R85 BR A& A1 R) M B
RFizEmRAE (BREREES LB
EIGEPIZEGEXERIESEEEE 2 #
wmMOKR) () BRIEFES REBEK
BlE 321G BN ZiGFTiEE R
B NAR ¢ S(c)BREIFER AR Al
I LMBETAESETRESFRZ 2B
<RI ([BAESFAI]) J1g Q7] SR EERZ AT
R RARWT

EMEEGER)BRAR

17



18

Annual Report 2016

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FRGWE

(i) Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of
HK$0.10 each (the “Shares”) of the Company

(i) RELGFREE010/ET LA
BR(TRB 1258

Number of issued Shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FHERTRIHE  SHRERME

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued Shares
as at 31 December
Through 2016
Directly spouse or Through {EXATR
beneficially  minor children controlled Beneficiary —F-RE
owned BRRREY corporation of a trust Total +ZfA=+-HZ
ERERHR FREFE  EAREEE ERZEA @it EEARBEMM
Directors EZ
Mr. Xie Xuan Eilihikd - - 518,014,782 - 518,014,782 29.40%
(Note 1)
(B51)
Mr. Qiu Yue BHEE 15,430,000 - 18,620,436 - 34,050,436 1.93%
(Note 2)
(ko)

Note 1: The controlled corporation is Glamour House
Limited, which is accustomed to acting in
accordance with Mr. Xie Xuan’s instructions
who is its sole director, which is the beneficial
owner as to 67.18% of Asian Dynamics
International Limited.

Note 2: The controlled corporation is Lucky Peace
Limited, which is incorporated in Samoa, and
which is 100% wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu Yue.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December
2016, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including any interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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House Limited + % A 7] 18
MIREME-—EFHELE
ER1TE - W% A Asian
Dynamics International
Limited 2 67.18% 2 & i &
2% o

M2 © 3% %1% % @ A Lucky Peace
Limited - 5 BE & 30 5% it BX
Voo HBMEERERA
100% °
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Interests and short positions of the Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2016, so far as was known to
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed
or taken to have, an interest or short position in the

Shares and

underlying Shares which would fall to

be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, were as

follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Shares
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(B) EERRVRAFATZIH - ARMRHS KR
AHZHERRRE

RZZE—RF+-A=+—H KE=S
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A AT IR A BR AN ) RRBR 17 I A B A%
DHREER  IEEARNEEREERER
H R EIEGIBEXVIBE2RIDBAR A
AT ERmIAR T ¢

() RRHZHFE

Percentage of

the Company’s

issued Shares

as at

31 December 2016

YA

Number of R-F-RE

Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares +ZA=+—-HZ2

BRREH Sip RiYHE CEETROHESH

Glamour House Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 518,014,782 29.40%
(Note 1)

RfE R (M)

Asian Dynamics International Limited ~ Beneficial owner 517,896,132 29.39%
EREAA

Century Field Limited Beneficial owner 276,306,666 15.68%
BREBAA

Note 1:

The controlled corporation is Asian Dynamics
International Limited, which is beneficially
owned as to 67.18% by Glamour House
Limited.

fEEr: & X & /% Asian
Dynamics International
Limited * F Glamour House

Limited B s £ H67.18% ©
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(ii) Long Positions in the Underlying Shares

Nil

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December
2016, the Directors of the Company were not
aware of any other person (other than the
Directors and the Supervisors of the Company)
who had an interest and short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO and/or were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the issued share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures in the Company or any other body
corporate granted to any Directors or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates had an interest
in a business which competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group nor any
conflicts of interest which has or may have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDER

As far as the Directors are aware of, other than Asian
Dynamics International Limited, Glamour House Limited
and Mr. Xie Xuan, there was no other person as at 31
December 2016 who was directly or indirectly interested in
5% or more of the shares then in issue of the Company and
who was able, as a practicable matter, to direct or influence
the management of the Company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have
been audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED. CHENG
& CHENG LIMITED retired and offers themselves for re-
appointment as auditor of the Company at the next annual
general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance. The Board
recognises that such commitment is essential in upholding
the accountability and transparency and to achieve a
balance of interests between the shareholders, customers,
creditors, employees as well as other stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

To ensure compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules, the Board will continue to monitor and revise
the Company code to bring our corporate governance
practices in line with the changes in the environment and
requirements of the Code. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Company has complied with all the provisions of the
Code, for the year ended 31 December 2016, except:

()  under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing. The Company has
set out in written terms the responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive officer. At present,
Mr. Xie Xuan, the chairman of the Company, also
undertakes the responsibilities of the chief executive
officer until a replacement for the chief executive
officer is found. The Company considers that under
the supervision of its Board and its Independent Non-
executive Directors, a balancing mechanism exists so
that the interests of the shareholders are adequately
and fairly represented.

(i)  under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term and subject to re-election. None of the
existing Non-executive Directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term. This constitutes
a deviation from the code provision. However, all
the Non-executive Directors of the Company are
subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of
dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with all the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on
behalf of the shareholders. The Board is of the view that
it is the Directors’ responsibility to create value for the
shareholders as a whole and safeguard the best interests
of the Company and the shareholders by discharging its
duties in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on the
principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of six Directors, with three
executive Directors, namely Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman), Mr.
Qiu Yue and Dr. Feng Ke; and three independent non-
executive Directors namely Mr. Wu Jixue, Mr. Zheng
Hongliang, and Dr. Wang VYi. They are professionals in
different areas and provide independent opinions based on
their expertise.

BOARD PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS
Proposed regular Board meeting dates for a year are
informed to each Director at the beginning of the year.
Formal notice of at least 14 days will be given in respect of
a regular meeting. For special board meeting, reasonable
notice will be given. Directors participated, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication in the
Board meetings. The Board of Directors meets regularly at
least 4 times a year. The Directors participated in person
or through other means of communication. All notices
of board meetings were given to all Directors, who were
given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
discussion. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis
of major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses,
including relevant rules and regulations. Directors can also
seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary. Minutes of
each board meeting will be kept and are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on request by any Director.
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of the legal action against the Directors.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
The Company has established formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new
directors. The procedures and process of appointment,
re-election and removal of directors are laid down in the
Company’s Articles of Association. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything
herein, the chairman of the Board shall not, whilst holding
such office, be subject to retirement by rotation or be
taken into account in determining the number of Directors
to retire in each year. Accordingly, as at the date of this
report, Mr. Xie Xuan, being the chairman of the Company,
is not subject to retirement by rotation. Other relevant
Articles state that all Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to re-election by shareholders
at their first annual general meeting after appointment, a
retired Director shall be eligible for re-election. All Directors
should retire by rotation at least once every three years. The
nomination committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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During the year, 10 Board meetings and 1 annual general
meeting (“AGM”) were held. Details of the attendance of the
Directors are as follows.

REARN HBETTREFSSANL —RABRRE
BFERE([RRBEFRE])  -EFEKEZ
SR b FRENT

Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual general
Directors EE Directors Committee Committee Committee meeting
B8 EREEE REZEE HFWEEE REEEXE
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman) HELE(FE) 10/10 N/ATER 1 i 0N
Mr. Qiu Yue il 8/10 N/AE N/ATE N/ANEF 0N
Dr. Feng Ke HEHEL 8/10 N/AE N/ATE N/ANE R 11
Independent Non-Executive BUEHTESE
Director
Mr. Wu Jixue REELE 6/6 3/4 N/ATE il 0N
Mr. Zheng Hongliang B RE 4/6 3/4 11 11 01
Dr. Wang Yi T#HET 3/4 4/4 i N/ATEA 0N

Dr. Wang Yi was appointed on 29 February 2016
as Independent Non-Executive Director, Chairman
and member of the Audit Committee, member of the
Nomination Committee.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopts a board diversity policy and discusses
all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue
to be made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits
of diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon
the merits and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

R-ZZE—RXE-_A-+hB I&HBLEZS
TABIIERITES  BERZEGEREEK
8 UREEEZEEKE -

ESESUILBR
EZSRMZTTEBERIA R i B %I
RABIEZHERNEREBR - RARMER
EEEFEXREZTNE - HBHRNHE
REZENRTT - KBREZEATEERT
B DA ARRAZEBER - AEESS
ZEREBNEEXNE SR TRZERE
MR TIARE - REANEERERSHKL
#£E - BEETRRERN - Fi - XEEH
BER  KBR(FERHEM)  HERMHE -
REREBENMEECREABRESTSS



ZE-RFER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Every newly appointed
director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Besides, Directors
should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors will be arranged and reading materials on relevant
topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
current Directors received the following training with an
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a director
of a listing company in compliance with the CG Code on
continuous professional development during the Year.

Corporate Governance
Updates on Laws Rules &
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Accounting Financial/
Management or Other

Regulations Professional Skills
TEER/BRMES - RA EHRMBBHEH
RHGlzRmHER RAIRRBIZ&HER
Attended Attended
Read Seminars or Read Seminars or
Materials Briefing Materials Briefings
e g/
Directors EE REE R BRE E e BRE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman) OB S (£ = N/& Y/ R N/&
Mr. Qiu Yue B e A Y/ & N/& Y/ % N/&
Dr. Feng Ke EEHE L Y/ % Y/ & Y/’ Y/ &
Independent Non-Executive BIEBITEE
Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue Ry Y/ R N/& Y/ R N/&
Mr. Zheng Hongliang B e Y/ & N/& Y/ & Y/
Dr. Wang Vi TaE+ Y/ & N/& - N/ &
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. None of the existing Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from the code provision.
However, all the Non-executive Directors of the Company
are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent based on the annual
confirmations received.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has been established.
The current chairman of the committee is Mr. Wu Jixue,
an Independent Non-executive Director, and the other
members are Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and Mr. Xie Xuan.

Under the code provision B.1.1, a listed issuer should
establish a remuneration committee with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties. The Company, has established a remuneration
committee as required under the code provision B.1.1.
The role and function of the remuneration committee
includes the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all Executive Directors, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and to make recommendations to
the board regarding the remuneration of Non-Executive
Directors. The remuneration committee should consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the year under review, one meeting of the
remuneration committee was held.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
it comprised of namely Mr. Zheng Hongliang, Dr. Wang
Yi and Mr. Xie Xuan. The chairman of the committee is
Mr. Zheng Hongliang, an Independent Non-Executive
director. The committee considers the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company’s
articles of association in selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship during the year.

The nomination committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board, assessing the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

During the year, the committee considered and resolved
that all the existing Directors shall be recommended to be
retained by the Company. Further, in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association (subject to the proposed
amendments at the forthcoming annual general meeting),
except Mr. Xie Xuan, the Company Chairman, those who
have served the Company for more than three years will
retire, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has established an audit committee comprising
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Wang
Yi, Chairman of the committee, Mr. Wu Jixue and Mr.
Zheng Hongliang, and has adopted terms of reference
governing the authorities and duties of the audit committee.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Group. The audit committee has reviewed
the draft of this Annual report and the audited financial
statements and has provided advice and comments
thereon. During the year under review four meetings of the
audit committee was held. The audit committee has met
with the auditors twice within the year under review.
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AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year under review, CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
have been appointed as the external auditor of the
Company.

The audit committee of the Company is responsible
for considering the appointment of the external auditor
and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit
functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the total fee
paid/payable in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the Company’s external auditor is set out
below:

A2 S0 T % 42 251 67 7 B
REBEERN  BEGHMEBHERA A
BRI RIS A FINEZIET -

ARBERZBEGAEZERTBINERHED
REZINEZBEPTET 2 EMAFEZET
1 BRZIFRBTEEERAEEHERE
MEEERTHEE -

BE_Z—XR"F+-_A=+—HLEFER "
R F 2 INEEAZ BR ARt PR Az IR R AZ R
Emelk ERzBRAENT

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#xT FAETT
Type of Services RisiEsE
Audit Service FEZRTE 720 700

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year, which give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016
and of the Group’s financial performance and cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and are properly
prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with
the applicable statutory requirements and accounting
standards. The Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties which may affect the Company’s business
or cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Statements of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements and external auditor’s reporting
responsibilities as set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

ESREBETMARE FIRIEZEE

EEFREBESHREAFERRAGE N
BHREEBEM MZEVYHEREREEER
FTRMAEER -_Z—REF+_HA=1+—H
WP BRARAREEHEZE_S—"F+=A
—T-HLEFEMNPBERBERRERE - I
BIEEARNEERTERETERRBELE
EEZ LRS- EETWTMBEEMEKRT
BERZ ARG EARTNIEL &2
RAFEBIERITBEIKEERB 2R NZ IR
EEE

EEREVBHRR 2 E TR A RINEXEED
HEZETIINB I ZEE RS



ZE-RFER

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROLS

On an annual basis the internal control process was
performed periodically, while the Directors have reviewed
and are satisfied with their ability to comply with the
policies installed as part of the Group’s internal control
system, including, in particular, financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.
Furthermore, the Directors are satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions, and
their training programs and budget.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond,
maintains a high standard of corporate governance and has
complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review all Constitutional documents
have been filed and updated on the GEM & Company’s
websites.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors.

According to the GEM Listing Rules, all resolutions put
forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company after each shareholder
meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2012 Revision). However,
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more shareholders of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one shareholder of the Company which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that
such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the company

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, if a
shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”)
for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”)
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office.

The Notice (i) must include the personal information of the
Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing
Rules; and (i) must be signed by the shareholder concerned
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness
to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal
information.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on
the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

In order to ensure the Company’s shareholders have
sufficient time to receive and consider the proposal of
election of the Candidate as a director of the Company
without adjourning the general meeting, shareholders
are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as early as
practicable preferably at least 15 business days prior to the
date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board
of Directors/Company Secretary at the Company’s
head office. For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s)
must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the Company’s head office and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed
as required by law.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

A s
EEIBRWMS

BRERHEREZNLZSERATNESZERF

REARREZERMAE - 00— BBIRER
H—RBALT(TREADRERAS L2EXR
NAEE RARNARAERERERSHE
BA(RE]) - WERREABRTIWE -

BAOLEHINBEA ZER EmBEBE
17.50 Q)R EIREA ZEANER » R(i)7A
MEZAEEREEE  THREAZERH
FRESEKEEAREMEAELLR -

RRXBAZHARBTERRASREE AR
4 WNERZERAE BHIA7 AR -

BERAQRRIEE B HREUER K Z EE
FREABERAAEEZEZURABRRR
AEEHRT  BERIEYEATERT
RPRIETHEBREAZBRRAGRITAA
BRI 15 X A B H RIERBA -

RAESEREZERF

BEMEEFSREME  BRRIMDEES R
AWERLERRER  TARXARFEHE
BE o mRAERR  RRSARIRFEIERN
BREZEHER  BANBAIBERCGRER
ME) 2 ERERRAERER - WIRERSE
2% BREMMSOER BEEHEZ
A OBAERRRERAER RRER KA
RBOEDIRE T IABE -

BRITARARBBRAE LAEEGRR -

EMEEGER)BRAR

31



32

Annual Report 2016

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to
the shareholders and investors in compliance with GEM
Listing Rules and uses a number of formal communications
channels to account to shareholders and investors for the
Company.

These include (i) the publication of quarterly and annual
reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for shareholders of the
Company to raise comments and exchanging views with
the Board; (iii) the Company replying to the enquires from
shareholders timely; (iv) updated and key information of
the Company available on website of the Company; (v)
the Company’s website offering communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and investors;
and (vi) the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong
serves the shareholders regarding all share registration
matters. Also, the chairman of the board would attend
the annual general meeting and he would also arrange for
the chairmen of the other committees to attend. In case
of the absence, of the chairman of such committees, he
would invite another member of the committee to attend.
These persons would be available to answer questions
at the annual general meeting. The chairman of the
independent board committee would also be available
to answer questions at any general meeting to approve
a connected transaction or any other transaction that is
subject to requires independent shareholders’ approval.
The external auditor would also be arranged to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
independent auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Company will keep on reviewing its corporate
governance standards on a timely basis and the Board
endeavour to take the necessary actions to ensure
compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG report by the Group highlights its Environmental,
Social, and Governance (the “ESG”) performance, with
disclosure reference made to the ESG Reporting Guide as
described in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and Guidance
set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This ESG report discusses the Group’s overall performance
in the Environmental and Social of the business operations
in Hong Kong and in the PRC from 1st January 2016 to
31th December 2016, unless otherwise stated.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
For this ESG report, in order to identify the most significant
aspects for the Group to report on, key stakeholders
including investors, shareholders and employees have been
involved in regular engagement sessions to discuss and
to review areas of attention which will help the business
meet its potential development and be equipped for future
challenges.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with us via email at info@acrnet.com.hk.

ASIAN CAPITAL RESOURCES’ SUSTAINABILITY
MISSION

Although the Company’s business model is not
considered to have any major direct impact on carbon
mission, the Company has taken extra effort to
become an environmentally and socially responsible
contributor in today’s society. The Company’s mission
towards environment, society and governance is to
achieve a coordination and joint development among
the environment, economy and society. It ranges from
helping to shift the investment chain towards responsible,
long-term value creation, such that economic, social
and environmental sustainability are delivered as an
outcome of the investment management process that
the Board undertook, and the various development
initiatives of the Company, including day-to-day corporate
management, business development and product and
service development. In this regard, the Company has also
formulated a relevant environmental, social and governance
policy, which:
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RIE - g MERRE

- adheres and complies to the relevant laws and
regulations of corporate environment, society and
governance for conducting the Group’s businesses;

- continues to improve and enhance the Company’s
relevant management system and policy of
environment, society and governance; and

- encourages and promotes our staff and employees
to save energy and conserve resources, supports
and motivates energy saving and emission reduction
measures (i.e. Paperless Office)

ENVIRONMENTAL

Type of emissions the Group has involved in the reporting
period was mainly travel emissions and paper consumption.
Our business does not involve in production-related
pollutions which would result in any direct emission.
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GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION RESHER
Emissions
HER
2016 2015 Change
—B—RE _—T—HF ZH%
Indirect Emission Travel 1.77 tonnes  2.46 tonnes -28%
R HERR ZIR 1.77 WE 2.46 Nif
Other Indirect Emission Paper Consumption 30,000* 32,500 -7.69%
H b A BERR 4R o OE FE
* Sheets of paper * ok
Travel £y
The Directors and senior executives have actively ZEFERaREEENRMBIIEMLENZEER

engaged in telephone conference meetings rather than
the traditional face-to-face for all non-essential meetings.
This has decreased the travel for the Board and the
senior executives hence reducing the corresponding
carbon emission produced from the traveling. In 2016 the
corresponding emission resulting from travel was 1.77
tonnes compared to 2.46 tonnes in 2015, a reduction
of 28% (the above figures has been computed from
http://calculator.carbonfootprint.com/).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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Paper Consumption

The Group continues to practice paper saving initiatives,
such as default double-sided printing, reminder for staff
to have environmentally friendly photocopying habit, and
separated collection of waste paper for effective recycling.
A total of 30,000 of paper were utilized in 2016 compared
to 32,500 in 2015, a reduction of 7.69%.

SOCIAL

Equal Opportunity

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement,
and compensation and benefits. The employees are not
discriminated against or deprived of such opportunities on
the basis of gender, ethnic background, religion, colour,
sexual orientation, age, marital status, family status,
retirement, disability, pregnancy or any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable law. The Group also appreciates
the importance of cultural diversity in the development of
the Group, and promotes the employment of employees in
a wide range of ages, genders, and ethnicities.

Comprehensive and Qualified Training Procedures
Core values are the basis for the training provided by the
Company. While job requirements serves as the theme
and enhancement of job skills serves as the objective for
the overall training. The Company succeeded in designing
targeted training courses facilitating improvement in the
employees’ professional and management quality to
the fullest extent and realizing their growth potentials.
In addition, the Company is qualified to supervise in
the training of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accounts (HKICPA). Furthermore the Company has also
supported and sponsored its employees to obtaining
relevant regulatory certificate for conducting private equity
management in the PRC.

Anti-corruption

The Group commits to manage all business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness
as its core values. All directors and employees are required
to strictly follow the Code of Conduct and Group’s policy
to prevent potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group’s Code of Conduct states clearly
that:
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RIE e NEAR

R

All directors and employees should avoid conflicts of
personal interest and their professional duties;

A situation in which employees exercise authority,
influence decisions and actions or gain access
to company assets and information through their
employment in the Group to achieve private and
personal gain is strictly prohibited.

Employees is required to declare any conflict of
interest by completing the required form as instructed
by the Group’s Human Resource Department.

Neither directors nor employees shall obtain or
provide benefits to customers, contractors, suppliers,
or people with business relationship with the Group.

Accepting voluntary gifts must be declared and have
undergone the approval process as administered by
the Group’s Human Resource Department.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS FROM THE GROUP

The directors of the Group are currently very well diversified
in respect of both professionally and geographically
to ensure the Group will be prepared for ongoing ESG
compliances. Going forward the Group and its Board
will continue to improve, enhance and promote the ESG
process. The Board and senior executives will continue
to be engaged in ESG training for the improvement of the
Group’s ESG development. More training and development
in terms of raising staff’'s awareness on environmental and
social impacts from the business will also be considered.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WOoW & w MK B O oA R oA WA
TO THE MEMBERS OF

ASIAN CAPITAL RESOURCES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 135, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION section
of our report, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

The auditor’s report of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 contained a qualified opinion in relation to limitation
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence as to the
carrying amounts of assets classified as held for sale. Up
to the date of this report, we have not obtained sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the
carrying amounts of assets classified as held for sale
as at 31 December 2015 as disclosed in Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Any adjustments found to be necessary to those balances
may affect the results and the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2016. Accordingly, the
corresponding amounts shown in the consolidated financial
statements may not be comparable with the amounts for
the current year.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (Cont’d)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3(c) to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately HK$2,587,000 for the year ended
31 December 2016 and sustained net current liabilities
of approximately HK$89,592,000 at 31 December 2016.
As stated in Note 3(c), these events or conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in Note 3(c), indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does

not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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OTHER INFORMATION (Cont’d)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. As described in the BASIS
FOR QUALIFIED OPINION section above, we were unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to the carrying amounts of assets classified
as held for sale as at 31 December 2015 as disclosed
in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the
other information is materially misstated with respect to this
matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in the
BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION section and Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter

AR EZEIR

Gooawill impairment assessment

A

Refer to Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
B2HEERE M TIFHRERMFEIS

The Group has goodwill of HK$182,015,000
relating to the Group’s business combination
allowing the Group to pursue its long term
business diversification strategy by entering into
the investment management and consultancy
industry. The Group is required to annually test the
amount of goodwill for impairment.
EEEREEEEFRETREEENERITE
MERRPEBZTIERBNEBaHEERE
182,015,000/ T °

Management has concluded that there is an
impairment of HK$13,468,000 in respect of the
goodwill. This conclusion was based on a value in
use model that required significant management
judgement with respect to the discount rate
and the underlying cash flows, in particular
future revenue growth. Independent external
valuation was obtained to support management’s
estimates.

B E O M E B E 13,468,000 7T © AR IR
BREEATEXLEBARSR(FRIRARKRIER)
THEERNEBAGSNEBEEERDR - BUSEIZINBET
HNEEXHEREENTEA -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

PR EEIE(E)

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

BHFNARERREZSEIR

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

HEEERENENERFEE

—  Evaluation of the independent external
valuers’ competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

- AMEBUHNEEERMNEES eI EE
BRE

—  Assessing the valuation methodology;

- FHEBEE

—  Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge
of the business and industry;

- %E%%&ﬁ%ﬁ%gﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%é
=23

— Reconciling input data to supporting
evidence, such as approved forecasts
and considering the reasonableness of
these forecasts;

- BB ABBEERE  fINEHE
WA R ZERZERARS SR

—  Checking the mathematical accuracy
of the cash flow models and agreed
relevant data to the latest forecasts;
and

-  REFSRED N ENERE LS TE
FEBEERHIER - &

— Assessing the historical accuracy of
forecasting of the Group.
- FHMABEEEENRIRTENZ ERE -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont’d)

Key audit matter (Cont’d)
B EZEE(E)

Valuation of contingent consideration payable

JEN AL B4 1E

Refer to Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.
FHLEGRE B mERMTE21 -

Management has estimated the fair value of
the contingent consideration payable to be
HK$108,289,000 as at 31 December 2016 with
a fair value loss for the year ended 31 December
2016 recorded in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
HK$7,336,000. Independent external valuation was
obtained in respect of contingent consideration
payable in order to support management’s estimates.
The valuations are dependent on certain key
assumptions that require significant management
judgement including expected volatility.

BEREM RIE-—XRF+A=+—8 - ENxK
RREHAFES108,289,0008 7T * HE-ZT—~
FHZA=+t—BIFENRTFELRET,336,000%
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PR EEIE(E)

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter (Cont’d)
EENMEEEREZEIRE)

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of contingent consideration payable
included:

HERBERNIAREHRENRFELE

- Evaluation of the independent external
valuers’ competence, capabilities and
objectivity;

- FMABMHNEEERMOEE  EHREE
RE

— Assessing the methodologies used
and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions; and

- FHMERATEREIERZESEE

- Checking, on a sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the input data
used.

- WMEREAAE AR TS LR RAE -

EMEEGER)BRAR

41



42

Annual Report 2016

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BRED R

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
B BRED R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tong Yat Hung
Practising Certificate number PO1055

30 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
fre Bm R E M2 E S

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NNF+-_A=+—HIFE

Note 2016 2015
B —EB—RE —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT TFAT
Revenue Uz 5(a) 30,621 23,551
Other revenue and net (loss)/income E fth g 25 &
(B8, WA FE 5(b) (3,822) 9,908
Administrative and operating TR R B X
expenses (26,973) (77,052)
Loss from operations K EE (174) (43,593)
Finance costs BE KA 7 (1,039) (1,105)
Share of losses of associates FE(R B & N RS 1E (508) (569)
Loss before taxation M AT E1E 8 (1,721) (45,267)
Income tax FrAS %t 10 (866) 12,719
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEEBE (2,587) (32,548)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): E 2z (BE)
ltems that may be reclassified HgrgeEFofazEay
subsequently to profit or loss: BHH :
Exchange difference arising on BREBINEBIEEZ
translation of foreign operations PE 5 E %R (266) (410)
Reclassification adjustments relating gt A H &8N E %
to foreign operation disposed of ZEF IR
during the year 271 -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 7N E H i 2 E s (E1E)
for the year, net of tax (FBRTHIE) 5 (410)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FEERHEEEEE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (2,582) (32,958)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: THANLREILRSTS ¢
— owners of the Company I VNEIEZ ¥ =N (2,234) (11,843)
- non-controlling interests — IV A (353) (20,705)
(2,587) (32,548)

46 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e BmkEMEE RS

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—AF+-_A=+—HAIFE

Note 2016 2015
B —E—-RE —ZT—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TFAT
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TIALEEEZE
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: | fi-Fok
— owners of the Company —ARNRQBEB A (2,205) (12,007)
- non-controlling interests —JEfE AR (877) (20,951)
(2,582) (32,958)
HK Cents HK Cents
7AWl B Il
Loss per share: BREE 12
Basic and diluted BEARNEE (0.13) (0.67)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these FEW 2B R ARG E M KR K 2 —5F
consolidated financial statements. % o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ira IR &

As at 31 December 2016
R-E-—NF+ZH=1+—H

Note 16 2015
PaE —RE _—T—IF
HK$'000  HK$'000
FET TFAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BENME&E 13 2,073 2,793
Intangible assets B EE 14 = -
Goodwil A N 15 182,015 195,483
Interests in associates REEE R A 2w 16 4,996 5,003
189,084 203,279
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 NEEIERERR 17 36,009 3,736
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS FEY 18 5,597 12,383
41,606 16,119
Assets classified as held for sale D ABELELE 19 - 195,407
41,606 211,526
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBEE
Trade and other payables H 5 & B A B BRRK 20 21,138 12,962
Amounts due to associates AN NI 16 913 -
Contingent consideration payable JE{J kA (B 21 108,289 -
Obligations under finance leases ~ G & & & T 22 300 -
Tax payable IR 558 -
X 131,198 12,962
Liabilities directly associated with 2548 A EHEEE
assets classified as held for sale =~ BH#EE BE 19 = 203,021
131,198 215,983
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mENE EIFE (89,592) (4,457)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRDERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 99,492 198,822
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES iﬁ.iﬂlaﬁa
Contingent consideration payable &1 g AL (B 21 - 100,953
Amount due to a director FEf— A% =208 27 4,173 5,713
Amount due to substantial R E 2R AR FIE
shareholder o 27 23,350 22,349
Obligations under finance leases FEHEST 22 825 -
Deferred tax liabilities FELEFRIBERE 23 - _
28,348 129,015
NET ASSETS EETHE 71,144 69,807
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ﬂﬁzt&ﬁﬂﬁ
Share capital N 24 176,183 176,183
Reserves 1:% & 25 (89,369) (87,164)
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANQAFHEHB AFE(GEZ
the Company N 86,814 89,019
Non-controlling interests eI ARt A (15,670) (19,212)
TOTAL EQUITY LEREZS 71,144 69,807

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2017.

Xie Xuan
Director

Qiu Yue
Director

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

== N\ / z_

~ /no;
l\‘/ N |:| E —~Z X mam

HEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_F—

Attributable to owners of the Company

NF+ZA=1+—HIFE

FATHENEL
Issued Non-
share Share  Capital Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total
ERTRE  RiEE AXBE  ERBE  RHBB It Rl by
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
ThEn TR ThR ThR TEn TR ThR ThEn
Asat 1 January 2015 RZE-1%5-A-H 176,183 304,371 26,020 (8,587)  (401,961) 101,026 1,739 102,765
Loss for the year rEERE - - - - (B4 (1184y (0705 (32,548
Other comprehensive loss E2EEE
Exchange difference arising BERNERAELZ
on tranglation of foreign EizE
operations - - - (164) - (164) (246) (410)
Total comprehensive loss TEFREERER
for the year - - - (64 (11843 (1200 (0951 (32958
As at 31 December 2015 and R-F-1%
at 1 January 2016 +ZA=t-BR
~§-r%-B-8 176,183 304871 26020 (3750 (413804 89019  (19212) 69807
Loss for the year rEERE - - - - (234 (2234 (383 (2.87)
Other comprehensive income Ep2ERA
Fxchange difference arising BERNERAELZ
on translation of foreign EiZE
operations - - - (327) - (327) 61 (266)
Reclassfication adjustments relating to ~~ StEALEFNELZ
foreign operation disposed of ENERE
during the year - - - 356 - 356 (85) 211
Total comprehensive income FEFRENAEE
for the year - - - 2 (2,234) (2,205) 377) (2,582)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHEAT - - - - - - 3919 3919
- - - 0 P2 5 352 1337
As at 31 December 2016 R-F-RE
+-A=+-H 176,183 304,371 26,020 (3,722)  (416,038) 86,814 (15,670) 71,144

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
nm i%iﬂmij%

For the year ended 31 December 2016
2T ANF+-A=1+—HIFE

Note
BsE

2016
—g—x%
HK$’000
FHTL

2015

—E—RF

HK$’'000
TAET

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:

Share of losses of associates

Fair value changes on contingent
consideration payable

Interest income

Distribution from unlisted investments

Interest expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment

written off

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Impairment loss of trade receivables
Impairment loss of goodwill

%’:Mﬁﬁgiziﬁﬁlllbg

HMTXEﬁ%:

SRR BATHE

KEFLMREZDIK
ME - BELREIITE

BV EEHH
ME - BE k&

ﬁEWE”ﬂZWE

ﬁ%ﬂ@%ﬁ

(1,721)
508

7,336
(20)

1,039

690

(3,489)
1,790
13,468

Operation profit before changes in
working capital
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other

receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other

payables

Ko E At & W Bl 3R

B 5 N AR R
200, CRd)

19,601

(34,063)

8,176

2,454

22,940

(30,483)

Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

(6,286)
(308)

(5,089)

Net cash used in operating activities

EEXRGIM AR FER

(6,594)

(5,089)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
,u/\ Eﬁi//lui%

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—ANF+-A=+—HIFE

Note 2016 2015
GERS S e
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TFAET
CASH FLOWS FROM BREEFHZHERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received B F & 20 62
Distribution received from WHRIE ETIRE 2 DR
unlisted investments - 12

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Purchase of property, plant and

HEAHEEREZ
Fris2kE - 5,185
BEMX - BER&E

equipment (41) (3,305)
Advances to associates BN EEN (1) (11)
Net cash outflow on disposal of a HENBAR 2B R

subsidiary Pt 31 (70) -
Net cash (used in)/from investing & EB(FE), Bz

activities e FE (92) 1,943
CASH FLOWS FROM MERESZIRERE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Repayment to)/advances from (BRTES) EFEX

a director (1,540) 284
Advances from/(repayment to) FERERR(ERT

substantial shareholder FERR) - (3,896)
Advances from associate NI =T 413 -
Proceeds from finance lease BEMRETSIRIE 1,500 -
Finance lease repayment MEHERER (375) -
Interest paid B H (38) (1,105)
Net cash used in BEEYARSFE

financing activities (40) (4,717)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HeRESEEYRLEE

CASH EQUIVALENTS (6,726) (7,863)
EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE [Ei &gz e

RATE CHANGES (130) -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MREMNZHEERIRSZEY

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 12,453 20,316
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZRERIAEEEY

AT END OF THE YEAR 5,597 12,453

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BN ZWEBRAGE T BHRER 2 —

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iRe ISR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-F—AF+-A=+—AILFE

1. CORPORATION INFORMATION

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to nearest thousand
unless otherwise stated.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are investment
holdings, provision of business consultation services,
and private investment fund management services.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)
In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
Amendments 2012-2014 Cycle
HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the

HKFRS 12 and Consolidation Exception
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments

HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Amendments Interests in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments

HKAS 16 and Classification of Acceptable
HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amendments Amortisation

HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants
HKAS 41
Amendments

HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Amendments Financial Statements

The adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs
has no material impact on these consolidated financial
statements.

52 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

The Group has not early applied the following new or
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
Amendments of Share-based Payment
Transactions?
HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9, Financial
Amendments Instruments with HKFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 10 and

Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Amendments Associate or Joint Venture*
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
HKFRS 15 Clarification to HKFRS 15,
Amendments Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
HKAS 16 Leases®
HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative’
Amendments
HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Amendments Assets for Unrealised Losses'

2.

iR e B RS R MY ot
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE=F—AF+-A=+—ALFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

]
N=

BRI ERR M aE

For the year ended 31 December 2016
2T ANF+-A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

4 To be determined

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
2014 mainly to include (a) impairment requirements
for financial assets and (b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive
income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of the subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of
financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at FVTPL is presented
in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
“economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group undertakes a
detailed review.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of other new and revised HKFRSs, certain
of which may be relevant to the Group’s operations
and may give rise to changes in accounting policies,
changes in disclosures and remeasurement of certain
items in the consolidated financial statements. The
Group is not yet to assess their impact on its results of

operations and financial position.

Are ISR R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+ - H=+—HIFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs (which
include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretation) issued by the
HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
(“GEM Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention
except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value.

Going concern

The Group incurred a loss for the year of
approximately HK$2,587,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and sustained
net current liabilities of approximately
HK$89,592,000 as at 31 December 2016. The
directors of the Company endeavor to improve
the Group’s liquidity position and have taken
measures to reduce overheads and costs to
strengthen its cash flow position. Furthermore,
the directors of the Company are currently
exploring various options in order to provide
additional equity funding to the Group. In
addition, the substantial shareholder has agreed
to provide continuing financial support to the
Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due.

In view of the above, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will be able
to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are satisfied that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on the going concern basis.
Should the Group be unable to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

3.

EXEHBR
(a) &REH

(b)

(c)

RAMBHRDRETEGEA
SR BBV HHREEN (B
FEGTEAFAGTER K2
B)RBEERBRAZ SRR
o ftHh - HAMBHRTERE
BIZERE S LR RN (TRIZR L™
AN BB DRG] 2 8RR
ME e

EREE

R BLR B M TS R TH IR B St A
#T MR TRAFEAENIE
TRRRSN -

BEEEEE
HE_Z—X"F+=-A=+—H
IEFEAREE 2 EE 2,587,000
B WERZE—XF+=A
—+—H AEBECAHEERDA
B F 58 %) 589,592,000/ T ° &
NEEBHNREAREE 2 TR
g W BB EUE R R R S
A o AN - RARESBRIESK
TRAGER - AREEREEIMNG
rEL - BE  FTERFEHREM
REERBBENE I  WEB
EIHRRS - NEESLARESR o

BERL  ARREEENAEE
15 BE 5 5 BB AT S 2R B B 2 B
BEE - At - "RABEREMNR
SR EEREUR AV BRRTD
BIRE - MARBERERBELE
BEAEFE - QA REFE L BB AR
BEBEMBZEAEKSE - A
RABEELZEAIRKE B
e WHFERDEERBBEENR
BRRBEERAE  -%ZFRABZ
FEW RN AP BRERT R



ZE-RFER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

iR e B RS R MY ot
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE=F—AF+-A=+—ALFE

3. EXEERE)

(d) SAREEE
RAMBRRBEAD T RANE
REAEHNER(BEAELER
ZEBRE - WELTIER - Al
N EVE SR HE -

o AIHREURITEES

s H2EREHRZEHMA
ESXARESAEDE
K

ol

7

R
i

o AEENMITEEENMS
%L E R o

WESERERER Lt = A
EEeh - TR R
REEE BTG TRHIRA
Y5 -

MARERNIREE R ZIREREREE
ERZH BREXZERAET
AEEERENAETMETRE
R ZERERE - AEERHE
BHRHBERES - EHEAEER
REHRZBRERRTRAETH
RO AEBERMANEREER
RER - B

s ARKEFERERZAEM
BREMERERBARFR
SRZHRBRDEE

o AKE - HMEREALEAM
AIHBZEBEERT®

o HMANLHELEZEN:

o

o ABRABEfLRTE -
AT AT RS
B2 EAEMEERER(D
ERBEREAR F 2 BE
H=) -

EMEEGER)BRAR

57



58

Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IS ¥R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NNF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NNF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” respectively; and

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’'s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the
Group in a business combination includes
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS
39, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when
the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain
or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at the date.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described below.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an
associate are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of an
associate used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Appropriate
adjustments are made to conform the
associate’s accounting policies to those of the
Group. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

Interests in associates (Cont’d)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an associate. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

(i)

Interests in associates (Cont’d)

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes
an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to write off their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

20%-33% or over the
remaining lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold
improvement

Furniture and 19%-50%
fixtures

Computer and
equipment

Motor vehicles

19%-33%

20%-33%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the
item is derecognised.

KR BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—ANF+-A=+—HIFE

BtER(E)
m# Wi AR ()
REDRAERE - RELEHT
{58 PR 4 B G EL AR AR R L AR E T 5T
S BRUMTABZEEFEMT

FHEMZERE © 20%-33%5,
LR AT HA
(ARG H
BAE)
RREE 19%-50%
SR 19%-33%
AE : 20%-33%

REREVESENEER LA
RIEERH TR A FHREL
e -

AR EEIK - AR IBEAER
AL R SR TR SR B R
T A -

REEEEXERKEEREED
CELHREEN DR ILER
WE - BERREER - KIEHER
BEMEL 2EMBRE(REER
BFRFEEIR R REE L Z8at
BIRKRILEREEZFEFTAR

o

EMEEGER)BRAR

67



68

Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iRe ISR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-F—AF+-A=+—AILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i) Research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Other
development expenditure is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is

incurred.

(ii) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date
of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.
Customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair
value at the date of acquisition. Customer
relationships have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to write off
the cost over the contractual periods.

Period and method of amortisation are

reviewed annually.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

@)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont’d)

(ii) Acquired intangible assets (Cont’d)
An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use. Gains
and losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

U]

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Cont’d)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: “loans
and receivables” and “available-for-sale”
(“AFS”) investments. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including
amounts due from subsidiaries and
associate, trade and other receivables, and
cash and bank balances) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment, except where
the receivables are interest-free loans
without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate, except for short-
term receivables when the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

U]

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

AFS Investments

AFS investments are non-derivatives that
are either designated as available-for-sale
investments or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Equity and debt securities held by
the Group that are classified as AFS
investments and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method and
dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes
in the carrying amount of AFS investments
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

AFS equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties; or

° a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its
cost.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

U]

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For certain categories of financial asset,
such as trade receivables, are assessed
for impairment on a collective basis
even if they were assessed not to be
impaired individually. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments that pass
the credit period, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment is the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods (see the accounting policy below).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit
or loss. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss.

When an AFS investment is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss in the period.

In respect of AFS equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised
in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. In respect
of AFS debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by
the Group are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either
financial liabilities at FVTPL or other
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at
FVTPL when the financial liability is either
held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for
trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Cont’d)

A financial liability other than a financial
liability held for trading may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”
permits the entire combined contract
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade
and other payables, and amounts due to
subsidiaries, associates, a director and
substantial shareholder, and obligations
under finance leases) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, unless the effect
of discounting would not be material, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company
are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the
prevailing market interest rate for similar
non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost
basis using the effective interest method
until extinguished upon conversion or at the

instrument’s maturity date.
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ZE-RFER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Convertible notes (Cont’d)

The conversion option classified as equity
is determined by deducting the amount
of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in
equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option
is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred
to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity
date of the convertible notes, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred
to accumulated losses. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue
of the convertible notes are allocated to
the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own
equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

() Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(iii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred assets, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(iii) Derecognition (Cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of
the consideration received for the part
no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(n)

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for
sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to
this measurement policy so far as the financial
statements of the Group and the Company are
concerned is financial assets. These assets, even
if held for sale, would continue to be measured
in accordance with the policies set out in note

3()(0).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(o)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
services provided in the course of the ordinary
activities, net of discounts. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follow:

()  Management and consultancy fee are
recognised whenever the services are
rendered;

(i)  Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time-apportioned basis
that takes into account the effective yield on
the assets; and

(i)  Distribution from investment is recognised
when the right to receive payment is
established.

(0)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Employee benefits

(p)

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, bonuses, paid leaves and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Retirement benefits schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
are members of central pension schemes
operated by the local governments in
the PRC and these subsidiaries make
mandatory contributions to these central
pension schemes to fund the employees’
retirement benefits. The retirement
contributions paid by the PRC subsidiaries
are based on certain percentages of the
employees’ salaries in accordance with
the relevant regulations in the PRC, and
are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
The Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits upon payment of
the retirement contributions to the central
pension schemes operated by the local
governments in the PRC.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (“the MPF Scheme”),
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(iii) Share-based payments

The fair value of the share options granted
to employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
included in profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payment reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-
based payment reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based
payment reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p)

(a)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

()

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F

—NF+ZA=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

()

(s)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Current tax and deferred
tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. When
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(s)

t)

Leases (Cont’d)

The Group as lessee (Cont’d)

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy
above).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Contingent liabilities

Present obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliably. Possible
obligations that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as a contingent
liability unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

3.

EX

(s)

®
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(u)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the entity’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary item.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the translation reserve as a
separate component of equity. Such exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed
of.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(u)

(v)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

In addition, in relation to partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

()  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of

the Group;

or

KR BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Related parties (Cont’d)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(v)

(o)

(i)

(i

(vili)

the entity and the Group are the
members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a
member);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person is identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of the
parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

3.

(W)

KR BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NNF+-_A=+—HIFE

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management has
made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account of their
estimated residual value. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values involve
management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful life
of the property, plant and equipment and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate,
such a difference may impact the depreciation in
the year when the estimate is changed and the
future period.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires management to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2016 was HK$182,015,000 (2015:
HK$195,483,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are set out in note 15.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Fair value measurement and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In
estimating the fair value of a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The management of the
Group works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that
include inputs that are not based on observable
market data to estimate the fair value of certain
types of financial instruments. Note 29(c)
provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various
liabilities.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group maintains impairment account for
trade receivables based on periodic evaluation
of the recoverability of the trade receivables.
The estimates are based on the ageing of the
trade receivables and the historical write-off
experience, net of recoveries. If the financial
condition of the debtors is to deteriorate,
additional impairment loss may be required.

iR e B RS R MY ot
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE=F—AF+-A=+—ALFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NNF+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

REVENUE 5. Wk
(@)  An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is (a) AEEBENLEBSTNOT :
as follows:
2016 2015
ZT-RE —T-—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Management and consultancy fee SR NERE R 30,621 23,551
(b) An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and net (b) AEEFAREMKER(EER) K

(loss)/income for the year is as follows: ANFESTMAT
2016 2015
—T-R"E —_T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET TFAT
Other income H o lhas 5 962
Distribution from unlisted investments # 3 1% & 7k - 12
Interest income B WA 20 62

Fair value changes on contingent RS AREBATFEZS

consideration payable (7,336) 8,872
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AR Z WS 3,489 -
(3,822) 9,908

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segment information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, directors of the Company, is based
on the type of services rendered by the Group’s
operating division for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

The Group has one reporting segment, private
investment fund management and consultancy
services. The Group’s revenue from external
customers by location of operations and information
about its non-current assets by location of assets are
detailed below:

KR BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—ANF+-A=+—HIFE

TEREF
BARERRIERRMAEELER
BA BARAES  2HR2HBPAR
TR BB S W2 RBAELS
e

AREBEE—ERZ2{ O - BIRAKRE
TEELBEERYE - AERBERERM
B DRBINBEP 2 W R AN R
BEMHI D ZIFRBDEEFBFOT

Revenue from external Specified non-current
customers assets
REIMERE FH M 22 EBEFRGEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—B—-R%E —hE ZB|—FRE —T—IF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TATT FHET THTT
PRC A 27,065 23,551 183,016 196,826
Hong Kong BE 3,556 - 6,068 6,453
30,621 23,551 189,084 203,279

The revenue from the four largest customers with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue is HK$27,065,000 (2015: the single
largest customer is HK$18,700,000)

REOABEF(EXRZGoEBRLAE
B Wz z1o%)zuﬁz/\7%27,065,ooo
BL(ZE—RF BE—RAEFA
18,700,0005 7T

EMEEGER)BRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-F—AF+-A=+—AILFE

7. FINANCE COSTS A& R A

2016 2015
—EB—-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#&T FAET
Interest on other loan HEMEZF S 1,001 1,105
Interest on finance lease MEHER S 38 -
1,039 1,105

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION Br¥i B Es1E

The Group’s loss before taxation is arrived at after

REE Z R AT R YRR T 5 &8/

charging: 2154
2016 2015
—FT-R"E —T—h1F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIRA(TBIEESHM)
remuneration)
— wages, salaries and other benefits —T& - #Ha M HAEF 2,059 5,072
— retirement benefits scheme — IR IR ET &I K
contributions 164 141
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREN N & 720 768
Amortisation of intangible assets A E — 50,877
Depreciation of property, plant and YW BEMEEZINE
equipment 690 713
Operating lease rentals in respect of T RIEF 2 KEHOAS
land and buildings 1,125 1,025
Legal and professional fees FEENEXRER 1,425 1,099
Impairment loss of goodwill B2 REEE 13,468 3,198
Impairment loss of trade receivables & 5 W R XM EE 1B 1,790 -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION
Directors’ remuneration
The details of emoluments of each director are

(a)

shown below:

Year ended 31 December 2016

As directors

iR e B RS R MY ot
For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE—F— AT+ A=+ —AILFE

EEXESHN

(a) EEHN
BREEZMOHENT :
BE-F-AF+=-A=+—HI
FE

As management

fEBEE fEBERBE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits contributions
Fees & 2R BKEH Total
Name of director EEHA e Hih 7% FTEIHR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FHET FTHET FHET
Executive directors: BITES :
Xie Xuan His 540 - - 540
Xiao Jing (Note (i) ER=AE() 50 - - 50
Qiu Yue i - - - -
Feng Ke ER} 504 - - 504
Independent non- BIESTES :
executive directors:
Wu Jixue N4 E 30 - - 30
Zhang Daorong (Note (i) 312 (i (i) 8 - - 8
Zheng Hongliang AR 18 - - 18
Dr. Wang Yi (Note (i) F & (B (i) 30 - - 30
1,180 - - 1,180
Note (): Resigned on 13 May 2016 PRIEEG) - J{‘S{é:%—ﬁiﬁﬂ t=A#
Note (i): Resigned on 29 February 2016 B RE(il) - }%ﬁjé%ﬂ‘—ﬁ:ﬂ —+H
bid
Note (iii): Appointed on 29 February 2016 k) 0 RZT—REZAZ+NH
ERE

EMEEGER)BRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NNF+-_A=+—HIFE

9.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
Directors’ remuneration (Cont’d)

(a)

Year ended 31 December 2015

9. EEREEHME)

(a) EFEHM(E)

BE-_F—FF{+-A=+—HI

FE
As directors As management
ERESR ERERE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits  contributions
Fees ¢ 2R RIKEEF Total
Name of director RS ko Hit e RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT THT THT THT
Executive directors: HITEE:
Xie Xuan e 540 - 540
Xiao Jing Hig 120 - 120
Chu Yat Hong (Note) x—(FsE) 50 - 50
Qiu Yue il - - -
Feng Ke B 504 - 504
Independent non- BIAFHTES :
executive directors:
Wu Jixue S A= 30 - 30
Zhang Daorong E3EES 48 - 48
Zheng Hongliang R 18 - 18
1,310 - 1,310

Note:  Resigned on 18 May 2015

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2015: Nil).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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KR BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—ANF+-A=+—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EEREEFHIMNE)
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid employees (b) AEREHES
The five highest paid employees during the FER - ANESHEE R BIEMRA
year included two (2015: two) directors whose —E—FF : WAL)EE ﬁiﬁﬁgﬂ
remuneration is set out in directors’ remuneration HHRN X (a )§$ﬁ B — &5 o H
in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the B (—E— VB E S =
remaining three (2015: three) non-director BB~ s ZZEITZ
employees are as follows:
2016 2015
—T-RE ~—T—afF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Salaries, allowances and < EAL R E b
other benefits 1,243 1,133
Retirement benefits scheme RIKRBAIGT SR
contributions 18 18
1,261 1,151

Their emoluments fell within the following band:

BEZHMENFIATHRE :

2016 2015
—®-—xE T a%

Nil to HK$1,000,000

£ %1,000,000/ 7T

EMEEGER)BRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-F—AF+-A=+—AILFE

10. INCOME TAX

10. Fif8#i

(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement (a) MREEEEZREGEEWERZE
of profit or loss and other comprehensive BHb

income represents:

2016 2015
—ET-RE —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FHTT

Current tax — PRC Enterprise
Income Tax
Charge for the year

Current tax — Hong Kong

BEARRIE — R %
FTiS#t
KFEEREZ 866 -

BIEIR TR — &

Profits Tax FFH

Charge for the year RFEEREZ = -
Deferred tax RIETIA 5 (12,719)
Income tax expense/(credit) Frisfims, (&%) 866 (12,719
Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as AR EEF AN EERT A
the Group had no estimated assessable profits FRLAR B BB AMGHERE(Z
for the year (2015: Nil). T—RHF:®)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% F N T FE SR B T 1225 % Rt
on the estimated assessable profit for the year A BERBCEMENR(ZE—H

(2015: Nil).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE-_T—AF+-_A=+—HAIFE

10. INCOME TAX (Cont’d) 10. FR8%i (&)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax (b) FiIBER% (BR)RBEsiasRk
expense/(credit) and accounting loss per b N ety .
the consolidated statement of profit or BEEiTEEZHIRIOT -
loss and other comprehensive income at
applicable tax rates is as follows:

2016 2015

“EB-AFE —T—HF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHETT

Loss before taxation bR AT E 1B (1,721) (45,267)

Notional tax on loss before taxation, I&ZMREE I AREE 2%

calculated at the rates applicable M EE 2 m AR =

to profit/loss in the jurisdictions MAE R EEBETE 2

concerned BRI 260 (8,218)
Income not subject to tax BEHT 2 WA (5,936) (5,999)
Expenses not deductible for tax e 2B Y

purpose 6,725 1,498
Utilisation of tax losses previously not & A 4 Bl AR FER 2 T2 18

recognised &8 (491) -
Under provision in prior year SEHIEEREBTL 308 _
Income tax expense/(credit) for the yearfE (R 2 R8RS (%) 866 (12,719)

EMEEGER)BRAR
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2T ANF+-A=1+—HIFE

11. DIVIDEND 11. &8
The directors do not recommend the payment of EETESEMEBEE_ZE—RNFE+= H
any dividends for the year ended 31 December 2016 =+ HLEFEREEAKRE(ZZ
(2015: Nil). —HF |
12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. SKkESE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BEREXEBE
The calculations of the basic loss per share are FRREREB RS T 8URETT
based on the following data: HE
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&IT FATT
Loss attributable to owners of KRNFEE ANEL
the Company g (2,234) (11,843)
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—REF
Weighted average number of w+=—A=+—82

ordinary shares at 31 December EmAE N HEE 1,761,825,563 1,761,825,563

(b) Diluted loss per share (b) EiEEEEE
Diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per BREEEE  ARitEEBEERE
share detailed above as there were no potential T8 2 #E R -

dilutive shares outstanding.

104 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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BE=F—AF+-A=+—ALFE

13. W% BERRE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computer
Leasehold Furniture and Motor
improvement  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HEMERSE FRREE ERRRE RE a3t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin TR TR T Fi#n
Cost %3
At 1 January 2015 RZE-R%5-A-H 239 453 730 146 1,568
Additions RE 395 33 6 2871 3,306
Written off sk (173 (57) (259) - (489)
Exchange difference ERER ) (1) (14) (6) (33)
Transfer to assets held for sale ERTHEHEVEE - (218) 87) (140) (445)
At 31 December 2015 and RIE-TETZA=1-H
at 1 January 2016 RZE-75-F-H 459 200 376 2871 3,906
Additions NE 4 - - - 4
Exchange difference ERES (25) ) ) (73) (103)
At 31 December 2016 RoE—5xE+-R=1-H 475 198 373 2,798 3,844
Accumulated depreciation and BHRERBESE
impairment losses
A1 January 2015 W-E-RE-f-R 2 211 532 146 915
Charge for the year TEERY 10 5 68 582 713
Written back s - (54) (230) - (284)
Exchange difference BRES - 4 9 (13) (26)
Transfer to assets held for sale BRSHENEZBE - (53) (12) (140) (208)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RE+-f=1-H
at 1 January 2016 k=E-7"%-F-H 36 153 349 575 1,113
Charge for the year AEERY 88 1 2 569 690
Exchange difference EiER (3) - ®) (26) (32)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-ETZA=T-A 121 164 368 1118 1771
Net carrying amount REFE
At at 31 December 2016 RZE-AEFZA=1-H 354 34 5 1,680 2,073
At at 31 December 2015 RZB-RET-A=1-A 423 47 27 2,296 2793

At the end of the reporting period, the net carrying
amount of motor vehicle with finance lease
arrangement was HK$1,044,000 (2015: Nil).

RBEPRR SERERELHNAE
BREFEA1,044,0008 (= —F
Fm|)o

EMEEGER)BRAR
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HE-F—AF+-A=+—AILFE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14, BR.EE

Customer
relationships
EFRf%
HK$'000
TET
Cost %3
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 and R-Z-R%-A-R"
31 December 2016 E-RETA=T-R 2R
—A-RRZZ-R"E+ZA=t-H 55,117
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses B RRESE
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%—A—H 4,240
Amortisation for the year FREH 50,877
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 and RZE-R1F+-A=1t-HK
31 December 2016 ZE-NE-A-BRZE—RE
+ZA=+—H 55,117

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2016

IREFE
W-_E-—R"F+-A=1—H -

At 31 December 2015

RZE-Rf+-A=+—-H -

Customer relationships represented cost incurred to
acquire contractual relationships with customers
through business combination in 2014. Details of
which are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 26 May 2014, 8 September 2014 and 5
December 2014.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—ANF+-A=+—HIFE

15. GOODWILL 15. BE
2016 2015
“ET-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TFAT
Cost DN
At 1 January and 31 December R—B—HE+=-_A=+—8H 198,681 108,681
Accumulated impairment losses ZETREEE
At 1 January Kn—H—H 3,198 -
Impairment loss recognised in the year X2 R (EEE 13,468 3,198
At 31 December nt+-—A=+—H 16,666 3,198
Net carrying amount AREFE
At 31 December Bn+=—A=+—H 182,015 195,483
Goodwill was arising from business combination in ﬁ:ﬁ%;im BT WNEZEBKEGH - =
2014. Details of which are set out in the Company’s EE RN ﬂ EI HA-ZZT— Eﬁﬂ
announcement dated 26 May 2014, 8 September —+7xH - —mFERLANBRZ
2014 and 5 December 2014. —OFE+= H ﬁ EIZ’“': °
Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing EEGREINRSREATAHR ZES
purposes to the following group of cash-generating EEE
unit:

2016 2015
“T-RE —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET

Private investment fund management FLAKEEESEEN

and consultancy services B8 1 AR 75 182,015 195,483
The management appointed independent qualified EREZEBLEEHEMANER
professional valuer, Ascent Partners Valuation Service AR AT EEAERIZIRSEESEAMN
Limited to determine the recoverable amount of this Z A [al & %8 o

group of cash-generating unit.

The recoverable amount of this group of cash- ZAR IR EEABMN 2 REIE£EETY
generating unit is determined based on a value in use $E}F{§ﬁﬁ{ﬁ@;ﬁfg mE AEE IR
calculation which uses cash flow projections based 7%%%,&2@7}5&}5 s IRERETE
on financial budgets approved by directors of the BsHE - 2B BBEERE AFEHRE
Company covering a five-year period, and a discount B K AT FEA1941%(—E— R E -
rate of 19.41% per annum (2015: 18.94%). 18.94%) o
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2T ANF+-A=1+—HIFE

15.

GOODWILL (Cont’d)

The cash flows beyond that five-year period have
been extrapolated using a steady 2.89% (2015:
2.77%) per annum growth rate which does not
exceed the long term average growth rate for the
market. Due to the slow down of economic growth
and increase in discount rate, the cash-generating
unit has been reduced to its recoverable amount of
HK$182,015,000. Accordingly, an impairment loss of
HK$13,468,000 has been recognised and included in
“administrative and operating expenses” in the profit
or loss. Any adverse change in the assumptions used
in the calculation of recoverable amount would result
in further impairment losses.

5 B (&)
TFBEz MRS REREREMNER
KGED8I%(ZF—FE : 2.77%)
HERETHEBATSNRITYIE
RE o &R E &AL X8
m-ReELABENSREHETWE S
%182,015,000/%8 7T » ALt - BIEKE
13,468,000 B R AL ABERZ
[TTEH R EERS] - sFEJIRE &5
R 2 B A E A T FIE B & B EEEIN
BB °

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. REEATIZHER
2016 2015
—B—-RE —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Unlisted investments JEETIRE
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 2,284 2,292
Amount due from associate AN E O] 2,712 2,711
4,996 5,003
2016 2015
—E—-RE —=E—F1F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH#IT FETT
Amounts due to associates [ AN NGB/ 913 -

Amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and has no fixed repayment terms.

Particulars of the associates are set out in Note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.

108 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—ANF+-A=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont’d) 16. REEZENTIZHER(EZ)
Aggregate information of associates that is not BRITE AL ATNESETEE
individually material:
2016 2015
—B-RE _—_T—nF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TFAT
Aggregate carrying amount of RE BRI ERTEKR
individually immaterial associates in B A F 2 BREEARE
the consolidated financial statements 2,284 2,292
Aggregate amounts of these RNEED(ZBE AR 2 2%
Group’s share of that associates
Loss for the year FAEE (508) (569)
Other comprehensive income Etzmikzs - -
Total comprehensive loss FHBEERE (508) (569)
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. BS R H it FEWARER
2016 2015
—FT-RE —T—h1F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Trade receivables Z AR 25,090 2,290
Impairment loss BEEE (1,790) -
23,300 2,290
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTHKIE - e &
receivables (Note) Ho b BR SR (F3E) 12,709 1,446
36,009 3,736
The credit terms granted by the Group to customers rEBREPREZEEGRDZ2ER
are determined on a case-by-case basis with BEHEHE MZREELPBEREZR
reference to the size of service contracts, recurrent BREEZEERELIZENSREE -
services provided to the customers and their credit AEBERZBERBERHE S EWRERIED
history. The Group makes provision for trade BE - rEEERNERIBAEE TP
receivables based on specific review. Provision is EEREMEEREBEE SHERWERR
made against trade receivables after considering the TEH B -

amount due, creditability of customers and other
qualitative factors.

EMEEGER)BRAR
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 17. B R EMEWIRER(Z)
The movement in impairment loss is as follows: HEEE Y EEBHmT
2016 2015
—B—-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFAT
At 1 January n—A—8 - -
Impairment loss recognised in the year = RiER 7 FEEE
At 31 December Rt+-—BA=+—H 1,790 -
1,790 -

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the
Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

SENHEPRRE ZRBEFR 2K

2016 2015

—E—RE —ZT—HEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#T FHET

0 to 30 days 0&E30k 21,800 -
Over 180 days HBiE180K 1,500 2,290
Total trade receivables B EWER KB 23,300 2,290

The credit period of the Group’s trade receivables
ranges from 60 days to 90 days. For certain
customers with long-estimated relationship and good
past histories, a longer credit period may be granted.

No interest was charged on the trade receivables.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these
balances. The management of the Group monitors
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and considers adequate impairment loss has been
recognised for irrecoverable amount, if necessary.
None of the trade receivable is either past due or
impaired.

During the year, impairment loss of approximately
HK$1,790,000 (2015: Nil) has been provided because
the customers were in default or delinquency of
payments.

Note: Included in other receivables, a balance of
HK$11,168,000 is managed receivable. The
investors entrusted the Company’s subsidiaries to
manage other receivables (“managed receivables”)
and other payables (“managed payables”).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

REBZEZEBERF ZEEBN TR
B60ZE90H - A TEEERFRABIERK
BERTRSsEFPME EREEH
TS IEHE & o

ZEEHRWEFIITEE - AEEH
BT Eam A ErEAm - A5E
ZEREERERERESER AW
CEHE  YRBELREERE 2 2
EREMREBR(NFE) - #HEES
W IR R E B EURE -

FRE 1,790,000 T (ZE—H
FE)ZREBBELREE  HEAR
FPREYHER A -

PsE - Efb AR P 21511,168,0008
TRZEEEBUERRGEH - REE
EREAR R BT A ) E IR H A B W
FR(TZEEBBARR]) A E
R ([ ZEIRENERR) -



18.

19.

ZE-RFER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KR BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016

B2 —F—NFF+_A=1+—HIFE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. A RINEZEY
2016 2015
—E—RE —hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&ET FAT
Cash and bank balances H4e MIR1TEES 5,597 12,383
Cash and bank balances included in HFADEABEHEEREY
assets classified as held for sale IRE NiIRTT4564 - 70
5,597 12,453
Bank balances comprise deposits with bank held by RITHEARBERAEEFEMREA
the Group with an original maturity of three months or R =B A kB R R 2 RITIF ©
less.
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 19. HEARBEHESE

On 4 December 2015, the Company entered into a
memorandum of understanding with an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Company intended
to dispose of 100% equity interest in a subsidiary,
Vega International Group Limited. The disposal was
completed on 24 March 2016 and disclosed in Note
31. The major classes of assets and liabilities at 31

RZE—RAF+-_AMNA - AQGEHE
SNMEZHEMBREESE B AR
Al E A B A 5Vega International
Group Limited 2 100%f% 4% - H&=E1E
RZE—RNE=ZA-+MWERKEE
BETRM:E3 - RZE—RF+A
“t+—RAZEZEERBERNOT

December 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015
—E-R"E —T-hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ERT FHET
Assets classified as held for PEAERIEREEERTR
sale comprise:
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB RFE - 240
Available-for-sale investments AEERE - 66,497
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H MR UER N - 128,600
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRESEED = 70
- 195,407
Liabilities associated with assets HOBARBENEEEEHEZ
classified as held for sale comprise: %%@% :
Trade and other payables 5 K E A FEAT BR K - 203,021
Net liabilities BEFHE = 7,614
Translation reserve relating to HAYBRKELEEER# 2
assets classified as held for sale [EPrR= - 323
Non-controlling interests relating to HAOBMRRKELEEERBZ
assets classified as held for sale FEIE R AE 2 - 3,801

TMEE(ER)BER AT 111
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20. ES R HMAEFBRRR

21.

2016 2015

—T-—RE —T—HF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FHET

Trade payables B 5 PR = -
Accruals and other payables (Note) TERBRA M EMEMEERK

(B E) 21,138 12,962

21,138 12,962

Note: As mentioned in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, included in other payables, a
balance of HK$11,168,000 is managed payable.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

Mt (&R A MRS R M sE17 Pl - EAbfE
TBR P B HE 45 94211,168,00078 T 2
STEREMERR -

. FEASANKE

2016 2015

—B—RE —T—1F

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Convertible bonds IR E A 108,289 100,953

Contingent consideration payable was arising from
business combination in 2014. Details of which are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 26 May
2014, 8 September 2014 and 5 December 2014.

Convertible bonds of contingent consideration
payable to be issued are based on the percentage
of profit after tax of the acquired subsidiaries in
each of the years 2015 and 2016 compared to
HK$25,500,000 respectively, therefore the contingent
consideration payable is classified as a financial
liability, measured at fair value through profit or loss
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” issued by HKICPA.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration payable is recognised in
profit or loss of the Group.

At the end of the reporting period, the convertible
bonds were not issued as the profit after tax of the
acquired subsidiaries had not been finalised.

The fair value of the contingent consideration payable
as at 31 December 2016 is determined by independent
qualified professional valuers, Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited using Binominal model.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

JEMSKARBRE - —UFZEKA
B SFBENAARIBHA T —PUF
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—E-NME+-_ARRACZRAE -

1B FEIT A BRRES 2 ENSRANRE
ERERMKRENBEARN - —HF
T RFSF2BBE RN LY
25,500,000 L2 B LL D RIETE - i
JENSAREIBAEMEAE  EEE
BETMASEMmzE S ERE39
FRIeMTHE : BRAEAZ2HEBERAUA
FEGFABEMARGE - MERRA
RENEZEZHNAEEBaSER -

RBERR - ARCKBEME DR 2R
o1& a8 A 5 R BERE » 8 AT R AR B 55 A R
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 —F—ANF+-HA=1+—HIFE

22. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 22, GIEHESHE
A motor vehicle of the Group was under finance lease —ANEBESEREREREN TS
at the end of the reporting period. The lease term is 5 BARKAM - HEFHARF(ZE—F
years (2015: Nil). The interest rate is fixed at 2.5% per F:8) MEDERBF25%(=F
annum (2015: Nil). —hF &) o

Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
=fHE miEBE2RE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—®-AF —T-nF ZB-AE ~T-0%F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FHET FTER FAET

Amounts payable under RERENRE

finance leases: FEfTRUA
Within one year —&FR 330 - 300 -
After one year but —Fi&
within two years BRMFER 330 - 300 -
After two years but within ME1&
five years BRAEFA 578 - 525 -
Less: Future finance W RKBES
charges 113 -
Present value of lease HOEE2RE
obligations 1,125 -
Less: Amount due for B AR —EREE
settlement within one 2B (5 BRE
year (shown under &f&)
current liabilities) 300 -
Amount due after one year ~ —4F14F|HI 218 825 -

TNEE () BRAT 113
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23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 23. BEHIEERE
The major deferred tax liabilities recognised and REENBAFEFEEHRAZFTERIER
movements thereon during the current and prior years HEEREESHMAT
are summarised below:
Intangible
assets
W\ EE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2015 F:;*ﬁﬁ*ﬁ*ﬁ 12,719
(12,719)

Credited to profit or loss

E-RF+TA=+—HBK
%@ /\/EE_H_EU;Z
T-RF+-_A=+—H -

At 31 December 2015 and at 1 January 2016 n=
and 31 December 2016 -

1 14 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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BE-F—ANF+-A=+—HIFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. BX
Number of
shares Amount
RHEE &8
HK$'000
FET
Authorised (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each):  AE MR (BREEC.10B L2 TBR)
Balance at 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, RZZ—h&FE—HF—H
at 1 January 2016 and at 31 December 2016 ~ —E—F&E+-A=+—-H -
RN-E2-—R~E-F-Bk
RZE—RET_A=+—Hz & 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid (Ordinary shares of BEETRBRRA(SREEI0ETL
HK$0.10 each) LiEk)
Balance at 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, R=Z—RF—HF—H "
at 1 January 2016 and at 31 December 2016 ~ —ZE—HF+-A=1+—H "
RZE-R"¥-A-Bk
RZE—RNF+-A=+—Hz&% 1,761,825,563 176,183
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25. RESERVES 25, {#if
Share Capital Translation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
Rt E EX0H B G Ritb a5t

HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TRL TEL TAL TAL TAL

At 1 Januery 2015 HoE-FE-A-F 304371 26,020 85T (401961) (75,157)
Loss for the year KEEEE . - - (11,849) (11,843)
Exchange difference arising on BERNRBEE,
translation of foreign operations EizE - - (164) - (164)
Total comprenensive loss for the year TEEREERES - - (164) (11,843) (12,007)
At 31 December 2015 and WZ%-1%
at 1 January 2016 TZAZ-BR
“E-75-A-8 304371 26,020 875 (41380 87,164
Loss for the year LEEER - - - (2,234) (2,234)
Exchange difference arising on RERNFBELL
iranslation of foreign operations EXEE - - (327) - (327)
Reclassffication adjustments relating to forsign 4 NE HESHEK 2 EH
operation disposed of during the year PHEE - - 3% - 356
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEERAERLE - - 2 (2.234) (2,209
At 31 December 2016 RZ%-7E
+ZR=+-8 304,371 26,020 (3,722) (416,038) (89,369)

1 16 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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RESERVES (Cont’d)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium, capital redemption
reserve and contributed surplus are distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of share premium, capital redemption
reserve and contributed surplus if:

(i) itis, or after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would be
thereby less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital account.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries
acquired through an exchange of shares as at the date
of the group reorganisation and the waive of loans by
a related party on 1 February 2004.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 3(u).

SHARE OPTIONS
The Company does not currently have any employee
share option scheme in effect.

25.

26.

KR BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Balances and transactions between the Company
and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions
between the Group and other related parties are as
follows:

(@ Amount due to a director, Xie Xuan, of
approximately HK$4,173,000 (2015:
HK$5,713,000) is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and is not due for repayment within the
next twelve months.

(b)  Amount due to substantial shareholder, Asian
Dynamics International Limited, of approximately
HK$23,350,000 (2015: HK$22,349,000) is
unsecured, interest bearing at the annual rate of
5% and is not due for repayment within the next
twelve months.

Interest paid and payable to the substantial
shareholder for the year amounted to
approximately HK$1,001,000 (2015:
HK$1,105,000).

() Management and consultancy fee income of
HK$1,500,000 (2015: Nil) was charged to a
related company in which a key management
personnel of the Company had controlling
interest. The amount of HK$1,500,000 (2015:
Nil) was outstanding at 31 December 2016.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

27. EXFAEALTEKS
ARAHREMBLF(BAARZEE
AL ZEBRESEREAEART
PG - R A SRR o AEE
BEHMEEA LY XS HEREMT -

ENEZESHEZREBEY A
4,173,000 T (ZE —HF :
5,713,000 L) T EE T - & 2
MBERERKRI2MEAREE -

FE {4 = 2 & = Asian Dynamics
International Limited 3% 1B 4 &
23,350,000 L (ZE — A F :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)
(d) The remuneration of directors and other

iR e B RS R MY ot
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE=F—AF+-A=+—ALFE

27. EXFEANTRS(E)

(d BEFERIZEBABRFRZH

members of key management during the year is BT
as follows:

2016 2015
“E-RE —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THTT
Short-term benefits %2 B4R A 1,599 1,722
1,599 1,722

The remuneration of directors and key executives
is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

28. COMMITMENTS
Operating lease commitments
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

REERTETBASZHM A
FHEZEeREESAZKREALT
BBERETE -

28. KiE
EEEERE
PR MR - AN E MRS R Al A A
HEAR BRI REREZRERR
mE

2016 2015
ZT-RE —T-hOF
HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

Within one year —FN 868 957
After one year but within five years —FEEREFAN 2,087 3,093
2,955 4,050

The Group’s operating leases are for terms of 1 to 5
years.

AEBZREHERPN F1E55F -

EMEEGER)BRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F

(a)

—NF+ZA=+—HIFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. MBIA
Categories of financial instruments (a) MBIRAZEH
2016 2015
—EB—RE T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ERT FHT
Financial assets MBEE
Available-for-sale investments A] ﬁ%&‘ - 66,497
Loans and receivables /\/A&}EJ‘I&
Amount due from associate JE W & R ) IE 2,712 2,711
Trade and other receivables f’f%&ﬁﬁl)ﬁqﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬂ 35,080 131,317
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTEH 5,597 12,453
43,389 212,978
Financial liabilities MBEaE
At amortised cost 4578 Sz )P
Trade and other payables f’f%&fﬁ\fﬂrﬁﬁﬁﬁ 21,138 215,983
Amounts due to associates FETESE & A B RIR 913 -
Amount due to a director e — %%$,\ E 4,173 5,713
Amount due to substantial B EEREFKIE
shareholder 23,350 22,349
Obligation under finance leases MEREST 1,125 -
Fair value through profit or loss FFABECATE
Contingent consideration payable B S ARE 108,289 100,953
158,988 344,998

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b)

Financial risk management and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
amount due from associate, trade and other
receivables, cash and bank balances, trade and
other payables, amounts due to associates,
contingent consideration payable, amount
due to a director, amount due to substantial
shareholder, and obligations under finance
leases. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(i) Market risk

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s functional currency is Hong
Kong dollar and the functional currencies
of the majority of the subsidiaries are Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi. The Group’s
transactions, trade receivables and trade
payables are mainly denominated in these
currencies.

Entities within the Group are exposed
to foreign exchange risk from future
commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. However, as the
net foreign exchange exposure is not
significant, the Group does not actively
hedge this foreign exchange exposure
and no foreign currency risk sensitivity is
disclosed.

KR BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 T NF+ - H=+—HIFE

29, AT R(E)

(b)
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For the year ended 31
BE—F

29. FINANCI
(b) Fina

December 2016

—NF+ZA=+—HIFE

AL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
ncial risk management and policies

(Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Market risk (Cont’d)

The Group periodically reviews monetary
assets and liabilities held in currencies other
than the functional currency to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an acceptable level,
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risks

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to fixed rate borrowings
from substantial shareholder (see Note 27)
and obligations under finance leases (see
Note 22). The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk relates primarily to bank balances
(see Note 18). The management considers
the Group’s exposure of the bank balances
to interest rate risk is not significant as they
have a short maturity period.

Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties, is the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in
relation to trade and other receivables,
the management has strengthened the
credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the management reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the management considers that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk management (Cont’d)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the majority of the counterparties
are reputable banks or banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

At the end of the reporting period,
HK$12,000,000 (2015: 2,289,950) and
HK$21,800,000 (2015: HK$2,289,950) of
the total trade and other receivables was
due from the group’s largest customer and
the three largest customers respectively
within the management and consultation
business segment.

Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
Group relies on issuing of shares and
borrowings from related parties as a
significant sources of funding.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for their
financial liabilities which are based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

KR BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—ANF+-A=+—HIFE

29. MIFEITA(Z)
(b) BATSEIREERBIE(E)

(i) EEERMRGEE(E)
nRBEEZEERRAR
EITERZSEFEERE
B EETREEL TR
Har B BB ZRTT -

RBEBR BEERE
HMEBDE DRI EWRAE
BEEAEBEFPR=ZAREFRP
BoHhEMEBRREAHK
12,000,000 L(ZZT—H
F 22899508 T ) &
21,800,000 T (ZF —H
12,289,950/ 7T) °

(i) REIELEGEE
AEBERRDHESRAR
B 2ERESRRSEE
MZKE  BERBEEE
BRAEGEZKE LA
KRRz &ERMTE @ BB
EREE 2 HE - BTG
&XE%@AiZ%%%
EECZFBESKR -

TERFANAEEZHHAR
ZHRTEHIHBER  HEE
RASEAKERBERZ &
EHHMmMAEZHBAGBR
BEIRBE T -

EMEEGER)BRAR

123



124

Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

— + o
iRe ISR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—AEF-A=—AILEE
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d)

29. MIFEITA(Z)
(b) BATSEIREERBIE(E)

(i) FEELEIGEE(E)

More than
Ondemand 3 months Total
or less than but less undiscounted Total

Imonths  thaniyear  Morethan  cash flows carrying
REXE  ZEANL 1 year KEE  amount
DRSER  BOR-E BE-F  RERME  RE4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

2016 ZE-5f Thn Thr T Thn Thr
Trade and other payables BHRAMERER 21,138 - - 21,138 21,138
Amounts due to associates ERBELRTE 913 - - 913 913
Contingent consideration payable ERSARE - 124,338 = 124,338 108,289
Amount due to a director Ef-2E238 - - 4,173 4,173 4173
Amount due to substantial shareholder ERTERETE - - 23,350 23,350 23,350
Obligations under finance leases YEREEL 83 247 908 1,238 1,125
22,134 124,585 28,431 175,150 158,988

2015 —E-1fF
Trade and other payables BAREMEMER 215,983 - - 215983 215983
Contingent consideration payable ERAARE - - 124338 124338 100953
Amount due to a director Eff-4E57E - - 5,713 5,713 5,713
Amount due to substantial shareholder ERTERETE - - 23,466 23,466 22349
215,983 - 153,517 369,500 344,998

In the opinion of the directors, the Group
should have adequate resources to meet
its obligation in the forthcoming year
on the basis set out in Note 3(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c)

Fair values

The directors of the Company have considered
that the carrying amounts of all financial
assets and liabilities, other than available-for-
sale investments described in Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements, approximate
their fair values at 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015.

The following table sets out the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015 using
the three-level hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.

KR BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—ANF+-A=+—HIFE

29, AT R(E)

(c)

AFEE

RAARIEERAMENBEERE
& (456 B 75 ¥R = MY 31 9 At m] 4
LERERN CREBEREIN
E—RETZA=1T—BRZE
—RAF+ZA=+—HZAFEMR

o
o

T%%YEIH*’“PTE?EZ@?VTKIE
RZE-—RE+ZA=+—HK

E-RFt-_A=+t—HZKEmA
TE HhERE BV BRELDSE

13RATE L =BREAR :

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—E: BEENTEB0HTER
markets for identical assets or ZHEREESABZE
liabilities that the entity can access at PR 5R(E (CRACAE) -
the measurement date;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices B BRE—"BZFRHER
included within Level 1 that are Gy BENBEZEE
observable for the asset or liability, s M A B R A H
either directly or indirectly; and B8

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the FZE: BEEREBZTUER
asset or liability. 8 ABUE o

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—B 5-E EE wct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TAT TET TET

2016 2R

Recurring fair value measurement &N TE &

Liabilities =0

Contingent consideration payable {3 AK(E = - 108,289 108,289

2015 —hfF

Recurring fair value measurement & EM A FETE

Liabilities =0

Contingent consideration payable  FEff s AR E - _ 100,953 100,953

TNEE(ER)BRAT 125
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE—F

—NF+ZA=+—HIFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c)

Fair values (Cont’d)

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

The fair value of contingent consideration
payable has been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out by Ascent Partners
Valuation Service Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the
Group, using Binominal model. The significant
unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is expected volatility.

If 10% increase/decrease in fair value of
contingent consideration payable while all other
variable held constant, the loss for the year
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$10,828,900 (2015: 10,095,300).

29, AT R(E)

(c)

AFEE)
HE-Z—XF+_-_A=+t—HK
—E-—REFE+_A=1+—HILE

B F-EBREFE_EBZzRELEH
% E-BRE_EITEEARE

HEZE - AEBBRRERSH
KRB D FERE 2 SRR R
LR

N SHAREBZAHERBLAE
REELEMAFEDAERA
Al (AR EEREY) XA AT
EBEAERZAEMESR - FER
ZEZNABRHABR RSB
iE - EEIR RS A EATT B
EREFERBEBET -

i & FE AT sk AR E QT (EE
A 10% i H AT SR 3%
T FEBBSEM BN
10,828,900 B L (=& — A F
10,095,300 7T) °

The movements during the year in the balance FRNANLEHEF - EBER &
of the Level 3 fair value measurement are as ST -
follows:
2016 2015
—T-—RE —T—n#F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAETT
1 January —HA—H 100,953 109,825
Fair value changes NEEEE) 7,336 (8,872)
At 31 December +=-A=+—8 108,289 100,953

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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KR BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-F—ANF+-A=+—HIFE
30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 30. EXEH
The Group manages its capital structure and makes REBEIEEEREE I FE ELER
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic M7 BB ERRBIELAR - S
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, PR ENER A TESg e
the directors of the Company may adjust the YRFREZREEER - BREREEAN
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to RETHERD - REBE S —REN—
shareholders and issue of new shares. No changes E-RAFE+-_A=t—HULEEER &
were made in the objectives, policies or processes EEE - BB FE NG o
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, REBENAEEESBELRFRERERNE
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net o BBEEFEBRUANGEER A EF
debt. Net debt includes trade and other payables, gﬁ cBEBEFEREE S R E M ENEE
amounts due to associates, contingent consideration CERMBEATIERIE - ERNKAR
payable, amounts due to a director and shareholders, f‘; FEN—2EENERERELGETR
and obligations under finance leases less cash and EET BIRESRESZEY - BAB
cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable BARNTIEE ANRIEITREZRE(GRE
to the owners of the Company and non-controlling 5o RIREHKRVEEBBEZENT ¢
interests. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —R"F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FETT
Trade and other payables f?%&ﬁl\ﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬁ%x 21,138 215,983
Amounts due to associates RN E QL] 913 -
Contingent consideration payable Eﬁjz%fﬂ,ﬁi 108,289 100,953
Amount due to a director B —REERE 4,173 5,713
Amount due to substantial FER = ERFFIA
shareholder 23,350 22,349
Obligations under finance leases BMERESEMT 1,125
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o IS RIBEEED (5,597) (12,453)
Net debt BB 153,391 332,545
Equity attributable to: THIALFEGRER :
— owners of the Company —NANRIER A 86,814 89,019
— non-controlling interests — IR RE S (15,670) (19,212)
Total equity R 71,144 69,807
Capital and net debt EARBETHE 224,535 402,352
Gearing ratio BEAMELE 68.31% 82.65%

TNEE(ER)BRAT 127
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NNF+-_A=+—HIFE

31.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

31.

On 24 March 2016, the Group disposed of 100%
equity interest in a subsidiary, Vega International

Group Limited.

HEMBAT]
MN-EBE—XE=ZF-+MWB A&£H
& — B M B 2 7 Vega International
Group Limited 2 100%B%# -

2016 2015
—B—Xx%E —T 0%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T

Net liabilities disposed of:

EHEREFRE

Property, plant and equipment M RN RE 241 -
Available-for-sale investments HBEEE 67,070 -
Trade and other receivables B 5N EMEWER K 129,711 -
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRSZEEY 71 -
Trade and other payables B NEHMENBER (204,771) -
Net liabilities BEFERE (7,678) -
Non-controlling interests SRR = 3,834 -
Translation reserve realised N EREIRIE Y EE

upon disposal 356 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE KB A T 2 WS 3,489 —
Consideration received in cash LIRS RIRESZEY

and cash equivalent UGER > 1R (B 1 _
Cash and cash equivalent BHEBRSRBELEEY

disposed of (71) -
Net cash outflow on disposal HE—ERBARIZIRS

of a subsidiary 75 HSEaE (70) -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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32. COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 32. ASMEIRAE
POSITION
2016 2015
—B—-RE —_T—HHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiExT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries B AR S 194,070 196,698
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E At R IR = 60
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENE &
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER R 650 676
Contingent consideration payable [E{I kAR E 108,289 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries R ENGIE e 4,956 3,775
113,895 4,451
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBEFE (113,895) (4,391)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERRBARE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 80,175 192,307
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERE
Contingent consideration payable [Eft sl AR E - 100,953
Amount due to a director JEN—RESEHRIE 69 68
Amount due to substantial JES E ERREREFKIE
shareholder 23,369 22,369
23,438 123,390
NET ASSETS BETH 56,737 68,917
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR
Share capital RN 176,183 176,183
Reserves (Note) AR (119,446) (107,266)
TOTAL EQUITY ‘g 56,737 68,917

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2017.

Qiu Yue
Director

Xie Xuan
Director

R-E—+tF=A=tHEEFSE
R AETIE -

wf B BBk
EFE EFE
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HE-F—AF+-A=+—AILFE

32. COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 32. ASIMBRRRET(Z)
POSITION (Cont’d)
Note: MEE -
Share  Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
ffh i {8 ENRR RitBRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
THET TET TER TER
At 1 January 2015 R-E-RF—-F—H 304,371 13,882 (364,461) (46,208)
Loss for the year rFEEE - - (61,058) (61,058)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RF+-fA=1+—H
at 1 January 2016 E-E-R%—F—H 304,371 13,882 (425,519) (107,266)
Loss for the year AEEER - - (12,180) (12,180)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-"E+-RA=+—-H 304,371 13,882 (437,699) (119,446)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of a
subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares as at the
date of the group reorganisation.

At the end of the reporting period, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution to shareholders of the
Company (2015: Nil).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—ANF+-A=+—HIFE

33. SUBSIDIARIES 33. HEBAT
(a) Particulars of the subsidiaries are as (a) BHBATRBIOT
follows:
Issued and

fully paid _Proportion of
share capital/ interest held by
registered the Company

Place of capital FLTRRL
incorporation/ Form of BETR fiih
Name operation legal entity BERE/ Directly Indirectly Principal activities
& HlEl GRS EARENS iftdd  EE  FE IERE
Asian Information Resources  The British Virgin-~ International business US$200  100% - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited® Islands company 200%T REER
ABRAEE AREZAT
Asian Information Resources ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$11,228,290 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited* (3 BREAAT 11,0820 70 REER
EHASERAT
Asian Information Resources ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HKS2 - 100%  Investment holding and
Finance Limited &5 BREMAH AT provision of treasure
functions to group
companies
RERRRASERARE
EBR%
Asian Information Resources  Hong Kong Limited liability HKS2 - 100%  Provision of administration
Investment Limited & BEREAAH 25T services to group
companies

REERARMTHRHS

Asian Information Resources ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100% Inactive

Marketing Limited &b ERELAT 10,0007 TELE
Biztech Company Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100,000 - 91% Investment holding
BENRARLE B AREAAT 100,003 7 REZR

EMEEGER)BRAR
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follows: (Cont’d)

33. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016
—NFE+-A=+—HIFFE

33. MIBAS (&)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as (a)

MBASFENT - (&)

Issued and )
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/ u;:]er%st held by
registered e Lompany
Place of capital FLTRFL
incorporation/ Form of BETR fmithl
Name operation legal entity #ERE/ Directly Indirectly Principal activities
£ Hlul GBS EARENS ifEs  EE  FR IERR
Guangzhou Wavecorn The PRC Limited liability RMB10,500,000 - 100% Inactive
Communications and G EREAT AR 10,500,007 iEE%
Advertising Limited*
BMERERREARAT
ACR Capital Management Samoa Limited liability US$1 - 100%  Provision of busingss
Limited* BET BRERAT 1% management and
consulting services in Asia
Pacific region
REARRHEHEER
ERRS
MIDEREREER The PRC Limited liabilty US$2,000,000 - 100% Provision of investment
ERAR G EREARE 200000057 management and
consul mg services
RUEREERRENRY
Asian Capital Resources The British Virgin -~ Limited liability US$100 - 100% Inactive
(PTC) Limited" Islands EREAAH 100%7L Tmex
EBRLES
MITEARREANLE ThePRC Limited liabilty RMB10,000,000 - 100% Inactive
hE EREALT AR10,000,0007 1EE%

* Companies not audited by Cheng & Cheng

Limited.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

N ZEREWARABE & A ER
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ZE-RFER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
/\VT\ ﬁﬁx#&% I}T—JL

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F—ANF+-A=+—HIFE

33. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 33. MBAT (&)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that (b) H2EMEBAT(HEFEXIEER
has material non-controlling interests iR 28
The following table lists out the information TREVIEAEEEGHERIE
relating to each of subsidiaries of the Group iRz EMB AR BB ER
which has material non-controlling interests TRV ZGHERBEREMA
(NCI). The summarised financial information AR EHAT 2 £ °

presented below represents the amounts before
any inter-company elimination.

2016 2015
ZEB-RE —T—AF
Biztech Company Limited HK$’000 HK$’'000
HEERRARAT THERT FHET
NCI percentage FEREREDLL 9% 9%
Current assets RBEE 5,948 12,609
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,682 2,308
Current liabilities mENAE (181,620) (185,754)
Non-current liabilities JERBIARE - -
Net liabilities BEFE (173,990) (170,837)
Deficit attributable to owners of BEREERARER A
Biztech Company Limited FE{h 2 At (173,990) (170,837)
Carrying amount of NCI RS R 2 BRTAIE 15,659 15,375
Revenue U &5 5 -
Loss for the year FNEIE (3,920) (2,879)
Total comprehensive loss ZHEEEE (2,875) (2,675)
Loss attributable to NCI FEfE Hx%ﬁnﬁfﬁz&ﬁa (353) 259
Total comprehensive loss JEIEREREERE
attributable to NCI B R (259) 241
Dividend paid to NCI X FIEERER RS - -
Cash flows from/(used in) operating  &&%¥%EHx (FTA)
activities REnE 51 (1,661)
Cash flows used in investing KEEELZIRERE
activities - (2,871)
Cash flows from financing BEEHELE
activities REME 1,125 -

TNEE () BRAT 133
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A\
N=

BTG SRR B o

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE—F—NNF+-_A=+—HIFE

(b)

33. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 33. MIBAT (&)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary (b) FZEMBAS(HEBEEXIEER
that has material non-controlling interests HEZS ) Z2EEIE (&)
(Cont’d)
2016 2015
Shanghai Zero2ipo M&A Fund —E—REF —ET—RF
Management Company Limited HK$’000 HK$’000
LI BERYREEEERRAT FHET TFAT
NCI percentage FEERERA DL - 49%
Current assets MENEE - 128,470
Non-current assets EMBEE - 66,560
Current liabilities mENAE - (202,788)
Non-current liabilities FnBERE - -
Net liabilities BEFEE - (7,758)
Carrying amount of NCI SRS 2 BREE - 3,801
Revenue g - 3,002
Loss for the year FHEE - (52,515)
Total comprehensive loss EEWALBRE - (52,303)
Loss attributable to NCI SRR IR Z
B - 25,732
Total comprehensive loss R ERENEE
attributable to NCI B A - 25,629
Dividend paid to NCI XM TIHEERER 2
Az 2. = -
Cash flows used in operating activities 4X & ¥ % FT A
Z2HERE = (3,303)
Cash flows from investing activities KEERSEL RS
mE - 2,396
Cash flows used in financing activities Ft & )EE)FTAIR S
mE = (7)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited



34.

35.

ZE-RFER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ASSOCIATES
Particulars of the associates are as follows:

KR BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2016
B2 —F—ANF+-HA=1+—HIFE

34. BEAT
BN ZHENT :

Place of Issued and  Proportion of interest
incorporation/ fully paid ~ held by the Company
operation Form of share capital FATRTzERILH Principal
Name R legal entity BBTRME  Directly Indirectly activities
¥4 G2 N1 [HZ E& B EEEH
Best Concept Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 - 40%  Property investment
BHERERAR BB BRAT] 1087 NERE
ACR Singpoli Capital The British Limited liability US$100 - 50%  Inactive
Management Ltd. Virgin Islands
RERXEE  BRAA 100%7T BEHK
ACR Sihai Capital Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1,000,000 - 50% Inactive
Management Limited
5 BRAH 1,000,000/ BEH
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 35. MmRZHLE
These consolidated financial statements were hEREVBRRENR-_TE—+LF=A
approved and authorised for issue by the Company’s —t+HERARESSHELRET

Board of Directors on 30 March 2017.

o

EMEEGER)BRAR
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